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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q/A

Amendment No. 1

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from              to             

Commission File Number: 000-24786

Aspen Technology, Inc.
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Delaware 04-2739697
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
incorporation or organization)

200 Wheeler Road
Burlington, Massachusetts 01803

(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

(781) 221-6400

(Registrant�s telephone number, including area code)

                Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days:                                               Yes  o    No x
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Explanatory Note

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-Q/A to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2007, initially filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2008, is being filed to reflect the restatement of our condensed consolidated balance sheet as
of September 30, 2007 and statements of cash flows for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, and the notes related thereto.

Subsequent to our issuance of the condensed consolidated financial statements on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2007,
and in connection with the review of our interim financial statements for the quarters ended December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2008, we
identified an error in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows related to the reported repayments of secured borrowings.  The
previously reported amounts of repayments of secured borrowings within net cash used in financing activities of $43.4 million and $26.5 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, did not appropriately reflect certain amounts due that were reclassified
and included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets and not yet disbursed in those periods.  We
should have considered the reclassification that created a reduction in the secured borrowings and recognition of the current liability as a
non-cash transaction until disbursements were made to the financial institutions.  Accordingly, our net cash flows from operating activities was
also misstated as a result of the inclusion of the effects of the changes in the current liabilities within the cash flows from operating activities
section of the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows.  As such, for the three months ended September 30, 2007, the net cash provided
by operating activities was overstated by $7.8 million and net cash used in financing activities was overstated by $7.8 million.  For the three
months ended September 30, 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was understated by $9.1 million and net cash provided by financing
activities was overstated by $9.1 million.  The error in the determination of the timing of these payments did not impact the total cash
repayments to the financial institutions, any change in total cash flows, or ending cash balances at the end of any reporting period, the condensed
consolidated balance sheets or condensed consolidated statements of operations.

In addition, we have identified an error in the adjustment we made to the accumulated deficit as of July 1, 2007, when we adopted FASB
Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,� or FIN 48.  Under FIN 48, an
entity should recognize a tax benefit when it is �more-likely-than-not,� based on the technical merits, that the position would be sustained upon
examination by a taxing authority. The amount to be recognized, if the �more-likely-than-not� threshold is passed, should be measured as the
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full
knowledge of all relevant information. Furthermore, any change in the recognition, derecognition or measurement of a tax position should be
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.  As a result of the implementation of FIN 48 on July 1, 2007, we had previously recognized
an increase of $3.0 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, with an offsetting increase to the accumulated deficit.  We have
subsequently determined that this position met the criteria of more likely than not as our tax position in this matter is viewed as sustainable, and
we believe it is appropriate to reverse this $3.0 million liability and the offsetting increase in accumulated deficit as of July 1, 2007.

See note 15 to the condensed consolidated financial statements for a discussion of this further restatement.  This Form 10-Q/A updates the
information provided in Part I Items 1 and 2 of the original Form 10-Q for the effects of the restatement.  This Form 10-Q/A has not been
updated for events occurring after the filing of the original Form 10-Q, except to reflect the restatement.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except share data)

September  30,
2007

June 30,
2007

(As restated,
See Note 15)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 129,468 $ 132,267
Accounts receivable, net 46,093 47,200
Unbilled services 7,617 10,641
Current portion of installments receivable, net 13,326 14,214
Current portion of collateralized receivables, net 86,422 104,473
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 8,944 10,163
Total current assets 291,870 318,958
Non-current installments receivable, net 37,476 28,613
Non-current collateralized receivables, net 136,711 140,603
Property and leasehold improvements, at cost 40,905 38,393
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (32,046) (31,858)

8,859 6,535
Computer software development costs 9,192 11,104
Other intangible assets, net 577 585
Goodwill 20,134 19,112
Other assets 3,124 3,387

$ 507,943 $ 528,897
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of term debt $ 133 $ 193
Current portion of secured borrowing 78,413 101,826
Accounts payable 5,285 5,833
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 90,237 95,742
Deferred revenue 63,478 62,345
Total current liabilities 237,546 265,939
Long-term secured borrowing 105,018 104,324
Deferred revenue 4,396 4,761
Deferred tax liability 567 625
Other liabilities 27,562 16,042
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Series D redeemable convertible preferred stock, $0.10 par value�Authorized�3,636 shares as of
September 30, 2007 and June 30, 2007 � �
Stockholders� equity:
Common stock:
Authorized�120,000,000 shares
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Issued� 89,402,784 as of September 30, 2007 and 89,133,494 shares as of June 30, 2007
Outstanding� 89,169,320 as of September 30, 2007 and 88,900,030 as of June 30, 2007 8,940 8,913
Additional paid-in capital 483,718 480,671
Accumulated deficit (370,491) (361,463)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 11,200 9,598
Treasury stock, at cost (513) (513)
Total stockholders� equity 132,854 137,206

$ 507,943 $ 528,897

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited and in thousands, except per share data)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
(As restated,
See Note 15)

Revenues:
Software licenses $ 31,119 $ 28,118
Service and other 33,719 36,047
Total revenues 64,838 64,165
Cost of revenues:
Cost of software licenses 3,376 3,149
Cost of service and other 16,339 17,481
Amortization of technology related intangible assets � 1,902
Total cost of revenues 19,715 22,532
Gross profit 45,123 41,633
Operating costs:
Selling and marketing 22,291 21,210
Research and development 11,677 8,490
General and administrative 12,288 10,519
Restructuring charges 7,226 1,446
Loss (gain) on sales and disposals of assets 20 (15)
Total operating costs 53,502 41,650
Loss from operations (8,379) (17)
Interest income 6,198 5,120
Interest expense (4,394) (4,588)
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 163 (67)
(Loss) income before provision for income taxes (6,412) 448
Provision for income taxes (2,591) (2,046)
Net loss (9,003) (1,598)
Accretion of preferred stock discount and dividends � (3,736)
Loss attributable to common shareholders $ (9,003) $ (5,334)
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to common shareholders $ (0.10) $ (0.10)
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding 88,995 52,801

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.
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ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited and in thousands)

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
(As restated,
See Note 15)

(As restated,
See Note 15)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (9,003) $ (1,598)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,825 5,271
Net foreign currency losses (gains) 447 (321)
Stock-based compensation 2,502 1,741
Non-cash interest expense from amortization of debt costs 231 205
Loss on disposal of property 20 �
Deferred income taxes (58) �
Provision for doubtful accounts 565 330
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 1,402 (1,454)
Unbilled services 3,010 112
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,227 695
Installments and collateralized receivables 13,068 14,747
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities (3,011) (2,657)
Deferred revenue 715 (4,862)
Other liabilities 589 (1,366)
Net cash provided by operating activities 14,529 10,843
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and leasehold improvements (3,129) (957)
Capitalized computer software development costs � (2,744)
Decrease (increase) in other long-term assets 26 (232)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,103) (3,933)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan 467 423
Exercise of stock options and warrants 697 551
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (60) (50)
Debt issuance costs � (1,124)
Proceeds from secured borrowing 20,680 31,510
Repayments of secured borrowing (35,586) (35,586)
Payment of tax withholding obligations related to restricted stock (592) �
Net cash used in financing activities (14,394) (4,276)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 169 (40)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (2,799) 2,594
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 132,267 86,272
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 129,468 $ 88,866

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

8



6

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

9



Table of Contents

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.  Interim Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and pursuant to the
rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) for reporting on Form 10-Q/A. Accordingly, certain
information and footnote disclosures required for complete financial statements are not included herein. It is suggested that these unaudited
interim condensed consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2007, which are contained in the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Aspen Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company), as
previously filed with the SEC. In the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting of normal and recurring adjustments, considered
necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows at the dates and for the periods presented have
been included. The results of operations for the three-month period ended September 30, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be
expected for the full fiscal year.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Statement of Position (SOP) No. 97-2, �Software Revenue Recognition,� as amended and
interpreted. License revenue, including license renewals, consists principally of revenue earned under fixed-term and perpetual software license
agreements and is generally recognized upon shipment of the software if collection of the resulting receivable is probable, the fee is fixed or
determinable, and vendor-specific objective evidence (VSOE) of fair value exists for all undelivered elements, such as maintenance support,
consulting and training services. The Company determines VSOE based upon the price charged when the same element is sold separately.
Consulting and training services VSOE represents rates that the Company charges its customers when the Company sells these services
separately. For an element not yet being sold separately, VSOE represents the price established by management having the relevant authority
when it is probable that the price, once established, will not change before the separate introduction of the element into the marketplace. The
Company uses installment contracts as a standard business practice and has a history of successfully collecting under the original payment terms
without making concessions on payments, products or services.

Revenue under license arrangements, which may include several different software products and services sold together, are allocated to the
delivered elements based on the residual method. Under the residual method, the fair value of the undelivered elements is deferred and
subsequently recognized when earned and the residual amount for the delivered elements is recognized in revenue when all other revenue
recognition criteria are met. The Company has established VSOE for consulting services, training and maintenance and support services.
Accordingly, software license revenues are recognized under the residual method in arrangements in which software is bundled with consulting
services, training and maintenance and support services. Consulting services do not generally involve customizing or modifying the licensed
software, but rather involve helping customers deploy the software to their specific business processes. The Company generally accounts for the
services element of the arrangement separately. Occasionally, the Company provides consulting services considered essential to the functionality
of the software or provides services for the significant production, modification or customization of the licensed software and recognizes
revenue for such services and any related software licenses in accordance with SOP 81-1, �Accounting for Performance of Construction Type and
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Certain Performance Type Contracts� using the percentage-of-completion method.

When a loss is anticipated on a service contract, the full amount thereof is provided currently. Service revenues and consulting and training
revenue are recognized as the related services are performed using the proportional performance method. Services that have been performed but
for which billings have not been made are recorded as unbilled services, and billings that have been recorded before the services have been
performed are recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Reimbursement received for out-of-pocket
expenses is recorded as revenue.

The Company has a practice of licensing its products through resellers in certain regions. For software licensed through these distribution
channels, revenue is recognized at the time of delivery to the end customer, when persuasive evidence of an arrangements exists, the fee is fixed
or determinable, collection is reasonably assured and other revenue recognition criteria are met.
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Maintenance and support services are recognized ratably over the life of the maintenance and support contract period. Maintenance and support
services include telephone support and unspecified rights to product upgrades and enhancements. These services are typically sold for a one-year
term and are sold either as part of a multiple element arrangement with software licenses or sold independently at time of renewal. The Company
generally does not provide specified upgrades to its customers in connection with the licensing of its software products.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the vesting
period.  Prior to fiscal 2006, the Company used the intrinsic value method.  Under the intrinsic value method, stock-based compensation is
recognized when the award is less than the fair value on the measurement date. See Note 7, �Stock-Based Compensation,� in the notes to the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for more discussion.

Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes financial assets when control has been surrendered in compliance with SFAS No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.� Transfers of assets that meet the requirements of SFAS No. 140 for sale
accounting treatment are removed from the balance sheet and gains or losses on the sale are recognized.  If the conditions for sale accounting
treatment are not met, or are no longer met, assets transferred are classified as collateralized receivables in the consolidated balance sheet and
cash received from these transactions is classified as secured borrowings.  All transfers of have been accounted for as secured borrowings. 
Transaction costs associated with secured borrowings, if any, are treated as borrowing costs and recognized in interest expense.  When cash is
received from a customer by the Company, the collateralized receivable balance is reduced and the related secured borrowing is reclassified to
an accrued liability for amounts the Company must remit to the financial institution.  The accrued liability is reduced when payment is remitted
to the financial institutions.

Income Taxes

The Company calculates the provision for income taxes during quarterly periods utilizing the expected effective tax rate for the year.  The
Company�s tax provisions primarily related to income taxes attributable to its operating results in foreign jurisdictions, foreign withholding taxes,
and interest associated with uncertain tax positions. The Company�s accounting policy with respect to uncertain tax positions is described in Note
3.

Deferred income taxes are recognized based on temporary differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the statutory tax rates and laws expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
the temporary differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are provided against net deferred tax assets if, based upon the available
evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets
is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income and the timing of the temporary differences becoming deductible. Management
considers, among other available information, scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, limitations of
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availability of net operating loss carryforwards, and other matters in making this assessment.

Derivatives

The Company records all derivatives, which consist of foreign currency exchange contracts, on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that
are not accounting hedges must be adjusted to fair value through earnings. If a derivative is a hedge, changes in the fair value of the derivative
are either offset against the change in fair value of assets, liabilities or firm commitments through earnings or included in accumulated other
comprehensive income depending on the nature of the hedge. The ineffective portion of a derivative�s change in fair value is immediately
recognized in earnings.  The Company does not account for any derivatives using hedge accounting treatment during the periods presented and
therefore the changes in fair value of derivatives is recognized in earnings.

3.  Income Taxes

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertain Tax Positions, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,� or
FIN 48, which clarifies the criteria for recognition and measurement of benefits from uncertain tax positions. Under FIN 48, an entity should
recognize a tax benefit when it is �more-likely-than-not,� based on the technical merits, that the position would be
sustained upon examination by a taxing authority.  The amount to be recognized, if the �more-likely-than-not� threshold
was passed, should be measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being
realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information.
Furthermore, any change in the recognition, derecognition or measurement of a tax position should be recognized in
the period in which the change occurs.
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The Company adopted FIN 48 as of July 1, 2007 and the adoption had no impact on accumulated deficit on that date. As a result of the
implementation of FIN 48 on July 1, 2007, the Company had $7.4 million of deferred tax assets previously subject to
a full valuation allowance which have been de-recognized. These amounts did not result in an adjustment to the
accumulated deficit at July 1, 2007 as a result of the full valuation allowance recorded against these deferred tax
assets.  To the extent these previously unrecognized tax benefits are ultimately recognized, they will affect the
effective tax rate in a future period. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption was $21.9 million.

The Company has historically accounted for interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions as part of its provision for income taxes. 
Following adoption of FIN 48, the Company will continue this classification.  As of July 1, 2007, the Company has accrued $6.2 million of
interest and $0.7 million of penalties related to uncertain tax positions. Prior to July 1, 2007, the Company classified all income taxes payable as
a current liability. Under FIN 48, the Company is required to classify those obligations that are expected to be paid within the next twelve
months as a current obligation and the remainder as a non-current obligation. As of July 1, 2007, the Company
classified $7.6 million of uncertain tax position liability and related penalties and interest as non-current obligations
within other liabilities.

The Company�s U.S. and foreign tax returns are subject to periodic compliance examinations by various local and national tax authorities through
periods defined by tax codes in the applicable jurisdiction. The years prior to 2004 are closed in the U.S., although the utilization of net
operating loss carry forwards generated in earlier periods will keep these periods open for examination. The Company�s operating entities in
Canada are subject to audit from year 2000 forward, in the UK  from 2006 forward, and other international subsidiaries from 2002 forward.  In
connection with examinations of tax filings, uncertain tax positions can arise from differing interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations
relative to the amount, timing or proper inclusion or exclusion of revenues and expenses in taxable income or loss.  For periods that remain
subject to audit, the Company has asserted and unasserted potential assessments that are subject to final tax settlements.

4.  Secured Borrowings and Collateralized Receivables

The Company has transferred customer installment and trade receivables to financial institutions or unconsolidated special purpose entities
(referred to herein as �receivable sale facilities�) that have been accounted for as secured borrowings.  The transferred receivables serve as
collateral under the receivable sales facilities.

At September 30, 2007 and June 30, 2007, receivables totaling $223.1 million and $245.1 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for
the secured borrowings.  The secured borrowings totaled $183.4 million and $206.2 million as of September 30, 2007 and June 30, 2007,
respectively.  The collateralized installment receivables are presented net of applicable discounts for interest established for the individual
receivable.  The interest rates implicit in the installment receivables for the three months ended September 30, 2007 ranged from 5.0% to 9.0%. 
The Company recorded $4.2 million and $3.9 million of interest income associated with the collateralized receivables for the three months ended
September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and recognized $4.1 million of interest expense associated with the secured borrowings each year. 
Proceeds from and payments on the secured borrowings are presented as components of cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated
statements of cash flows.  Payments on secured borrowings are recognized as financing cash flows upon payment to the financial institution, and
operating cash flows from collateralized receivables are recognized after customer payment of amounts due.
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Traditional Programs

The Company has arrangements to transfer certain of its receivables to three financial institutions at the mutual agreement of the Company and
the financial institution for each such customer receivable.  The transfer of customer receivables under these programs has been accounted for as
secured borrowings.  The Company received cash proceeds of $20.7 million and $11.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007
and 2006 related to these programs.

The total collateralized receivables for the Traditional Programs approximate the amount of the secured borrowings recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet.  The collateralized receivables earn interest income and the secured borrowings accrue borrowing costs at approximately the same
interest rates.  When cash is received from a customer by the Company, the collateralized receivable balance is reduced and the related secured
borrowing is reclassified to an accrued liability for amounts the Company must remit to the financial institution.  The accrued liability is reduced
when payment is remitted to the financial institutions.  The terms of the customer accounts receivable range from amounts that are due within 30
days to installment receivables that are due over five years.  The Company acts as the servicer for the receivables in one of the three
arrangements.

Under the terms of the Traditional Programs the Company has transferred the receivables to the financial institutions with limited financial
recourse.  Potential recourse obligations are primarily related to one program that requires the
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Company to pay interest to the financial institution when the underlying customer has not paid by the installment due date.  This recourse is
limited to a maximum period of 90 days after the due date.  The amount of installment receivables that has this potential recourse obligation is
$45.2 million at September 30, 2007.  In addition, the Company has recourse obligations totaling $1.6 million at September 30, 2007 if the
underlying installment receivable is not paid by the customer.  This recourse obligation is in the form of a deferred payment by the financial
institution that is withheld until customer payments are received.

Securitization of Accounts Receivable

The Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2007 securitization transactions include collateralized receivables whose value exceeds the related borrowings from
the financial institutions.  The Company receives and retains the right to collections on these securitized receivables after all borrowing and
related costs are paid to the financial institution.  The financial institutions� rights to repayment are limited to the payments received from the
collateralized receivables.  The carrying value of the collateralized receivables at September 30, 2007 under these arrangements was $55.8
million and the secured borrowings totaled $18.8 million.  The collateralized receivables earn interest income and the secured borrowings result
in interest expense.  The secured borrowings incur a higher interest rate than the implicit rates in the receivables.  The Company acts as the
servicer under both of these arrangements and the customer collections are used to repay the secured borrowings, interest and related costs.

Fiscal 2005 Securitization

On June 15, 2005, the Company securitized and transferred installment receivables with a net carrying value of $71.9 million and received cash
proceeds of $43.8 million.  This transfer did not meet the criteria for a sale and has been accounted for as a secured borrowing. These
borrowings are secured by collateralized receivables and the debt and borrowing costs are repaid as the receivables are collected.

Fiscal 2007 Securitization

On September 29, 2006, the Company entered into a three year revolving securitization facility and securitized and transferred installment
receivables with a net carrying value of $32.1 million and received cash proceeds of $20.0 million.  This transfer did not meet the criteria for a
sale and has been accounted for as a secured borrowing. These borrowings are secured by collateralized receivables and the debt and borrowing
costs are repaid as the receivables are collected.  The Company capitalized $1.1 million of debt issuance costs associated with this transaction
and these costs are being recognized in interest expense using the effective interest method.

Secured Borrowing Balances

The secured borrowings consist of the following at September 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006 (in thousands):
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September 30, June 30,
2007 2007

Traditional Programs � weighted average interest rate of 7.7% and 7.5% at
September 30, 2007 and June 30, 2007, respectively $ 164,623 $ 180,314
Fiscal 2005 Securitization � interest rate of 13% at September 30, 2007 and June
30, 2007 5,484 9,072
Fiscal 2007 Securitization � interest rate of 9.9% and 9.3% at September 30, 2007
and June 30, 2007, respectively 13,324 16,764
Total secured borrowings 183,431 206,150
Less current portion (78,413) (101,826)

$ 105,018 $ 104,324

The cash payments on the collateralized receivables fund the secured borrowing payments, and the Company retains payments received on
collateralized receivables which are in excess of the secured borrowings.  The Company has no future cash obligations other than the limited
recourse obligations noted above.

In December 2007, the Company paid the outstanding amount of the Fiscal 2005 Securitization at its carrying value.  The unamortized debt issue
costs were charged to expense at the time.

The Company had been in violation of certain covenants related to the Fiscal 2007 Securitization due to the delay in filing its financial
statements and other violations.  The secured borrowings under this arrangement have been classified in the current portion of secured
borrowings.  In March 2008, the Company paid the outstanding amount of the Fiscal 2007 Securitization at its carrying value plus a termination
fee of $0.8 million, and this securitization is no longer available.  The unamortized debt issue costs were charged to expense at that time.

10
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5.  Derivative Instruments

Forward foreign exchange contracts are used by the Company to offset certain installment and accounts receivable cash flow exposures resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Such exposures have historically resulted from portions of the Company�s installments
receivable that are denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, primarily the Euro, Japanese Yen, Canadian Dollar and the British
Pound Sterling.

The Company records its foreign currency exchange contracts at fair value in its condensed consolidated balance sheet and the related gains or
losses on these contracts are recognized in earnings. During the three months ended September 30, 2007 the net loss recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations was $1.7 million. During the three months ended September 30, 2006, the net loss recognized in the
condensed consolidated statements of operations was $0.1 million.

The following table provides information about the Company�s foreign currency derivative financial instruments outstanding as of September 30,
2007. The table presents the notional amount (at contract exchange rates) and the fair value of the derivatives in U.S. dollars:

Notional
Contract
Amount

Fair
Value Loss

(In thousands)
Euro $ 26,306 $ (1,331)
British Pound Sterling 4,077 (72)
Japanese Yen 2,819 (117)
Canadian Dollar 1,465 (131)
Swiss Franc 278 (34)

$ 34,945 $ (1,685)

6.  Other Liabilities

Other liabilities in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheets consist of the following (in thousands):

September  30,
2007

June 30,
2007

Tax liabilities $ 7,956 $ �
Restructuring accruals 14,235 10,255
Other 5,371 5,787
Total $ 27,562 $ 16,042

7.  Stock-Based Compensation Plans
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General Award Terms

The Company issues stock options to its employees and outside directors, and restricted stock units to its employees and provides employees the
right to purchase stock pursuant to a stockholder approved stock option and employee stock purchase plan. Options are generally granted with an
exercise price equal to the market price of the Company�s stock at the date of the grant: those options generally vest over four years and have 7 or
10 year contractual terms. Restricted stock units generally vest over four years (if performance conditions are met). The Company
discontinued its employee stock compensation plan after the six-month subscription period ended June 30, 2007.

Stock Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for time vested awards.  For awards that
vest based on performance conditions, the Company uses the accelerated model for graded vesting awards.  All of the Company�s stock-based
compensation is accounted for as equity instruments and there have been no liability awards granted. The Company�s policy is to issue new
shares upon exercise of stock awards.  Stock-based
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compensation cost for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2007 are included in the following categories (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
Recorded as expense:
Cost of service and other $ 323 $ 310
Selling and marketing 734 621
Research and development 444 199
General and administrative 1,001 611

2,502 1,741
Capitalized computer software development costs � 55
Total stock-based compensation $ 2,502 $ 1,796

8.  Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic loss per share was determined by dividing loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average common shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted earnings per share was determined by dividing loss attributable to common shareholders by diluted weighted average
shares outstanding. Diluted weighted average shares reflects the dilutive effect, if any, of potential common shares. To the extent their effect is
dilutive, potential common shares include common stock options and warrants, based on the treasury stock method, convertible preferred stock
based on the if-converted method, and other commitments to be settled in common stock. For the three months ended September 30, 2006 and
2007, all potential common shares were antidilutive due to the net loss. The calculations of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to
common shareholders and basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Three Months Ended,
September 30,

2007 2006
Loss attributable to common shareholders $ (9,003) $ (5,334)

Basic and Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 88,995 52,801
Basic and Diluted loss per share attributable to common shareholders $ (0.10) $ (0.10)

The following potential common shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding as their effect would
be anti-dilutive at the balance sheet date (in thousands):

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
Convertible preferred stock � 33,336
Employee equity awards and warrants 9,934 12,213
Preferred stock dividend, to be settled in common stock � 2,864
Total 9,934 48,413
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9.  Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is defined as the change in equity of a business enterprise during a period from transactions and other events and
circumstances from non-owner sources. The components of comprehensive loss for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2007 were
as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended,
September 30,

2007 2006
Net loss $ (9,003) $ (1,598)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,602 (245)
Total comprehensive loss $ (7,401) $ (1,843)
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10.  Restructuring Charges

During the three months ended September 30, 2007, the Company recorded $7.2 million in restructuring charges primarily related to the
relocation of the Company�s corporate headquarters under the May 2007 restructuring plan discussed below.

At September 30, 2007, total restructuring liabilities for all plans included $0.7 million for employee severance, benefits, and related costs and
$18.7 million for the closure or cease to use facilities. Management anticipates that payments of $5.2 million will be made over the next twelve
months and the remaining $14.2 million will be made through 2012.

(a)  Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2007

In May 2007, the Company initiated a plan to relocate its corporate headquarters from Cambridge to Burlington, Massachusetts.  The relocation
resulted in the Company ceasing to use its prior corporate headquarters leased space, subleasing the space to a third party, and the relocation to a
new facility.  During the year ended June 30, 2007, the Company recorded a charge of $0.1 million associated with the relocation of certain
departments to temporary space.  The closure and relocation actions resulted in an aggregate charge of approximately $6.1 million, with $6.0
million of the charge recognized in three months ended September 30, 2007.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $5.8 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining lease payments.  During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities
Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ �
Restructuring charge 6,068
Payments (289)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 5,779
Expected final payment date September 2012

Subsequent to September 30, 2007, the Company incurred additional charges of $0.3 million related to the Cambridge facility. The additional
activities were completed by October 2007.

(b)  Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2005
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In May 2005, the Company initiated a plan to consolidate several corporate functions and to reduce its operating expenses. The plan to reduce
operating expenses primarily resulted in headcount reductions, and also included the termination of a contract and the consolidation of facilities.
These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $3.8 million, recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. During the years ended
June 30, 2006 and 2007, the Company recorded an additional $1.8 million and $4.6 million, respectively, related to headcount reductions,
relocation costs and facility consolidations associated with the May 2005 plan that did not qualify for accrual at June 30, 2005. During the three
months ended September 30, 2007, the Company recorded an additional $0.4 million primarily in severance and relocation expenses for
employees that were notified or relocation expenses that were incurred during the period.

Under this restructuring plan, the Company has yet to incur charges related to the closure of certain offices and relocation of certain employees
included in the planned actions. The Company expects that these charges will be approximately $1.9 million and will primarily be completed by
June 2008.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $0.5 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining severance obligations. During the three months
ended September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related Costs Total

Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ � $ 688 $ 688
Restructuring charge 149 285 434
Payments (149) (437) (586)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ � $ 536 $ 536
Expected final payment date March 2008
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(c)  Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2004

In June 2004, the Company initiated a plan to reduce its operating expenses in order to better align its operating cost structure with the current
economic environment and to improve operating margins. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in the consolidation of facilities,
headcount reductions, and the termination of operating contracts. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $23.5 million,
recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. During the year ended June 30, 2005, the Company recorded $14.4 million related to headcount
reductions and facility consolidations associated with the June 2004 restructuring plan that did not qualify for accrual at June 30, 2004. In
addition, the Company recorded $0.4 million in restructuring charges related to the accretion of the discounted restructuring accrual and a
$0.8 million decrease to the accrual related to changes in estimates of severance benefits and sublease terms. During the year ended June 30,
2006 and 2007, the Company recorded a $0.7 million increase and a $0.2 million decrease, respectively, to the accrual primarily due to a change
in the estimate of future operating costs and sublease assumptions associated with the facilities.  During the three months ended September 30,
2007, the Company recorded an additional $0.6 million expense primarily related to changes in the estimates of future operating costs associated
with the facilities.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $5.1 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining severance obligations and lease payments.
During the three months ended September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related Costs Total

Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ 4,959 $ 92 $ 5,051
Restructuring charge 571 1 572
Restructuring charge�Accretion 73 � 73
Payments (611) (26) (637)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 4,992 $ 67 $ 5,059
Expected final payment date September 2012 August 2008

(d)  Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended December 31, 2002

In October 2002, management initiated a plan to further reduce operating expenses in response to first quarter revenue results that were below
expectations and to general economic uncertainties. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in headcount reductions, consolidation of
facilities, and discontinuation of development and support for certain non-critical products. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring
charge of $28.7 million. During fiscal 2005, 2006, and 2007, the Company recorded a $7.0 million, a $1.0 million increase, and a $0.2 million
decrease, respectively, to the accrual primarily due to a change in the estimate of the facility vacancy term, extending to the term of the lease.
During the three months ended September 30, 2007, the Company recorded an additional $0.1 million expense primarily related to changes in
the estimates of future operating costs associated with the facilities.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $7.7 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining lease payments. During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):
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Fiscal 2003 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities
Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ 8,043
Restructuring charge 80
Payments (440)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 7,683
Expected final payment date September 2012

(e)  Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2002

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, management initiated a plan to reduce operating expenses and to restructure operations around the
Company�s two primary product lines, engineering software and manufacturing/supply chain software. The Company reduced worldwide
headcount by approximately 10%, or 200 employees, closed and consolidated facilities,
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and disposed of certain assets, resulting in an aggregate restructuring charge of $13.2 million. During fiscal 2005, the Company recorded a $0.2
million increase to the accrual due to changes in estimates of sublease assumptions and severance settlements. During fiscal 2006 and 2007, the
Company recorded less than $0.1 million of charges due to changes in sublease assumptions.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $0.4 million remaining in accrued expenses relating to lease payments. During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2002 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related
Costs Total

Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 384 48 432
Change in estimate � Revised assumptions 2 3 5
Payments (50) � (50)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 336 $ 51 $ 387
Expected final payment date September 2012 March 2008

11.  Commitments and Contingencies

(a)  FTC settlement and Related Honeywell Litigation

In December 2004, the Company entered into a consent decree with the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, with respect to a civil
administrative complaint filed by the FTC in August 2003 alleging that the Company�s acquisition of Hyprotech in May 2002 was
anticompetitive in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act. In connection with the consent
decree, the Company entered into an agreement with Honeywell International, Inc. on October 6, 2004 (�Honeywell Agreement�), pursuant to
which the Company transferred its operator training business and its rights to the intellectual property of various legacy Hyprotech products. In
addition, the Company transferred its AXSYS product line to Bentley Systems, Inc.

On December 23, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the transactions contemplated by the Honeywell Agreement.  Under the
terms of the transactions:

•  the Company agreed to a cash payment of approximately $6.0 million from Honeywell in consideration of
the transfer of the Company�s operator training services business, the Company�s covenant not-to-compete in the
operator training business until the third anniversary of the closing date, and the transfer of ownership of the
intellectual property of the Company�s Hyprotech engineering products, $1.2 million of which is subject to holdback
and may be released upon the resolution of any adjustments for uncollected billed accounts receivable and unbilled
accounts receivable.
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•  the Company transferred and Honeywell assumed, as of the closing date, approximately $4 million in
accounts receivable relating to the operator training business; and

•  the Company entered into a two-year support agreement with Honeywell under which the Company agreed
to provide Honeywell with source code to new releases of the Hyprotech products provided to customers under
standard software maintenance services agreements.

The Honeywell transaction resulted in a deferred gain of $0.2 million, which was amortized over the two-year life of the support agreement, and
is subject to a potential increase of $1.2 million upon resolution of the holdback payment.

The Company is subject to ongoing compliance obligations under the FTC consent decree. The Company has been responding to requests by the
Staff of the FTC for information relating to the Staff�s investigation of whether the Company has complied with the consent decree.  In addition,
the FTC is considering whether to commence litigation against the Company arising from the Company�s alleged failure to comply with certain
aspects of the decree. If the FTC or a court were to determine that the Company has not complied with its obligations under the consent decree,
the Company could be subject to one or more of a variety of penalties, fines, injunctive relief and other remedies, and associated legal fees and
expenses, any of which might materially limit the Company�s ability to operate under its current business plan and might have a material adverse
effect on the Company�s operating results and financial condition.
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In March 2007, the Company was served with a complaint and petition to compel arbitration filed by Honeywell in New York State Supreme
Court. The complaint alleges that the Company failed to comply with its obligations to deliver certain technology under the Honeywell
Agreement referred to above, that the Company owes approximately $800,000 to Honeywell under the Honeywell Agreement, and that
Honeywell is entitled to some portion of the $1.2 million retained by Honeywell under the holdback provisions of the Honeywell Agreement,
plus unspecified monetary damages arising from contracts assumed thereunder. The Company believes the claims to be without merit and intend
to defend the claims vigorously, and to pursue payment of the $1.2 million retained under the holdback provisions of the Honeywell Agreement.
However, it is possible that the resolution of the claims may have an adverse impact on the Company�s financial position and results of
operations.

(b)  Other Litigation

SEC action and U.S. Attorney�s office criminal complaint

In January 2007, the SEC filed a civil enforcement action in Massachusetts federal district court alleging securities fraud and other violations
against three of the Company�s former executive officers, David McQuillin, Lisa Zappala and Lawrence Evans, arising out of six transactions in
1999 through 2002 that were reflected in the Company�s originally filed consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2000 through 2004, the
accounting for which was restated in March 2005. The Company and each of these former executive officers received �Wells Notice� letters of
possible enforcement proceedings by the SEC. On the same day the SEC complaint was filed, the U.S. Attorney�s Office for the Southern District
of New York filed a criminal complaint against David McQuillin alleging criminal securities fraud violations arising out of two of those
transactions. Mr. McQuillin pled guilty in March 2007 and was sentenced in October 2007.

On July 31, 2007, the Company entered into a settlement order with the SEC resolving the Wells Notice the Company received. Under the
settlement order, the Company agreed to cease and desist from violations of certain provisions of the federal securities laws, and to comply with
certain undertakings.  No civil penalty was assessed by the SEC in connection with that settlement order, and the Company has not admitted or
denied any wrongdoing in connection with that settlement order.

The SEC enforcement action and the U.S. Attorney�s Office criminal action do not involve the Company or any of its current officers or
directors. The Company can provide no assurance, however, that the U.S. Attorney�s Office, the SEC or another regulatory agency will not bring
an enforcement proceeding against the Company, its officers and employees or additional former officers and employees based on the
consolidated financial statements that were restated in March 2005.  The Company continues to cooperate with the SEC and the U.S. Attorney�s
Office.

Class action and opt-out claims

In March 2006, the Company settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of the restated consolidated financial
statements that include the periods referenced in the SEC enforcement action and the criminal complaint discussed above. Members of the class
who opted out of the settlement (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock, or less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the
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class action period) may bring or have brought their own state or federal law claims against the Company, referred to as opt-out claims.

Pursuant to the terms of the Class Action settlement, the Company paid $1.9 million and its insurance carrier paid $3.7 million into a settlement
fund for a total of $5.6 million. The Company�s $1.9 million payment was recorded in general and administrative expenses in the quarter ended
September 30, 2005. All costs of preparing and distributing notices to members of the Class and administration of the settlement, together with
all fees and expenses awarded to plaintiffs� counsel and certain other expenses, will be paid out of the settlement fund, which will be maintained
by an escrow agent under the Court�s supervision.

Separate actions have been filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million shares who either opted out of the class action settlement
or were not covered by that settlement.  The claims in those actions include claims against the Company and one or more of its former officers
alleging securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, statutory treble damages, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability,
based on the restated results of one or more fiscal periods included in its restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action.
Those actions are:

•  Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on June 5, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of
the Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1 in that court, which
is an �opt out� claim asserted by persons who received 248,411 shares of the Company�s common stock in an
acquisition;
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•  Feldman v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on July 17, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-3021-BLS2 in that court, which is
an �opt out� claim asserted by an individual who received 323,324 shares of the Company�s common stock in an
acquisition; and

•  380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district
court in Manhattan and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, which is a claim asserted by persons
who purchased 566,665 shares of the Company�s common stock in a private placement.

The damages sought in these actions total more than $20 million, not including claims for treble damages and attorneys� fees.  If these actions are
not dismissed or settled on terms acceptable to the Company, the Company plans to defend the actions vigorously.  The Company can provide
no assurance as to the outcome of these opt-out claims or the likelihood of the filing of additional opt-out claims, and these claims may result in
judgments against the Company for significant damages.  Regardless of the outcome, such litigation has resulted in the past, and may continue to
result in the future, in significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could result in
losses and damages that have a material adverse effect on the Company�s business.

On September 6, 2006, the Company also announced that, in connection with the preparation of financial statements for the fiscal year-ended
June 30, 2006, a subcommittee of independent directors was appointed to review the Company�s accounting treatment for stock option grants for
prior years. Following that announcement, the Company and certain of its officers and directors were named defendants in a purported federal
securities class action lawsuits filed in Massachusetts federal district court, alleging violations of the Exchange Act and claiming material
misstatements concerning its financial condition and results. In response to the Company�s motion to dismiss the complaint, the parties stipulated
to voluntary dismissal of the plaintiff�s claims with prejudice on September 26, 2006 without any payment by the Company.

Derivative suits

The Company may be named as a defendant in securities litigation or derivative lawsuits by current or former stockholders based on the restated
consolidated financial statements.  Further, the Company may be subject to claims relating to adverse tax consequences with respect to stock
options covered by the restatement. Defending against potential claims will likely require significant attention and resources of management and
could result in significant legal expenses.

On December 1, 2004, a derivative action lawsuit captioned Caviness v. Evans, et al., Civil Action No. 04-12524, referred to as the Derivative
Action, was filed in Massachusetts federal district court as a related action to the first filed of the putative class actions subsequently
consolidated into the class action described above. The complaint, as subsequently amended, alleged, among other things, that the former and
current director and officer defendants caused the Company to issue false and misleading financial statements, and brought derivative claims for
the following: breach of fiduciary duty for insider trading, breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate
assets and unjust enrichment. On August 18, 2005, the court granted the defendants� motion to dismiss the Derivative Action for failure of the
plaintiff to make a pre-suit demand on the board of directors to take the actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint, and the
Derivative Action was dismissed with prejudice.
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On April 12, 2005, the Company received a letter on behalf of another purported stockholder, demanding that the board take actions
substantially similar to those referenced in the Derivative Action. On February 28, 2006, the Company received a letter on behalf of the plaintiff
in the Derivative Action, demanding that they take actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint. The board responded to both of the
foregoing letters that the board has taken the letters under advisement pending further regulatory investigation developments, which the board
continues to monitor and with which the Company continues to cooperate. In its responses, the board also requested confirmation of each
person�s status as one of the Company�s stockholders and, with respect to the most recent letter, also referred the purported stockholder to the
March 2006 settlement in the class action.

17

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

31



Table of Contents

On September 27, 2006, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts Superior Court captioned Rapine v. McArdle, et al., Civil Action
No. 06-3455. The complaint alleged, among other things, that the former and current director and officer defendants �authorized, modified, or
failed to halt backdating of stock options in dereliction of their fiduciary duties to the Company as directors and officers.� On October 16, 2006,
defendants removed the action to Massachusetts federal district court and moved to dismiss the complaint. On October 30, 2006, the purported
stockholder plaintiff filed an amended complaint, asserting derivative claims for breach of fiduciary duty; unjust enrichment; insider trading;
violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and corporate waste.  In October 2007, the court closed this
action and consolidated the action with the Risberg case referenced below, which was subsequently dismissed.

In February 2007, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts federal district court captioned Risberg v. McArdle et al., 07-CV-10354.
The plaintiff purports to bring a derivative action on behalf of the Company alleging, among other things, that several former and current
directors and officer defendants authorized, were aware of, or received �backdated� stock options. The complaint asserts claims for breach of
fiduciary duty; unjust enrichment; violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; corporate waste; and
breach of contract. In January 2008, the court granted defendants� motion to dismiss this action for failure of the plaintiff to make a pre-suit
demand on the Company�s board of directors, and judgment on the order of dismissal was entered in favor of all defendants.

Other

The Company is currently defending claims that certain of its software products and implementation services have failed to meet customer
expectations. On May 11, 2007, one of the claims resulted in an arbitration award against the Company in the amount of $1.4 million.  As of
September 30, 2007, the Company has accrued the amount of the arbitration award. The Company is defending other claims in excess of $5
million, primarily consisting of a customer claim, as well as other general commercial claims. Although the Company believes the
remaining claims to be without merit, and is defending the claims vigorously, the results of litigation and claims
cannot be predicted with certainty, and unfavorable resolutions are possible and could, depending on the amount and
timing of any outcome, materially affect the Company�s results of operations, cash flows or financial position. In
addition, regardless of the outcome, litigation could have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense costs,
diversion of management resources and other factors.

(c) Other Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has entered into an employment agreement with its president and chief executive officer providing for the payment of cash and
other benefits in certain situations of his voluntary or involuntary termination, including following a change in control. Payment under this
agreement would consist of a lump sum equal to approximately two times (1) his annual base salary plus (2) the average of his annual bonus for
the three preceding fiscal years. The agreement also provides that the payments would be increased in the event that it would subject him to
excise tax as a parachute payment under the Internal Revenue Code. The increase would be equal to the additional tax liability imposed on him
as a result of the payment.

The Company has entered into agreements with other executive officers, providing for severance payments in the event that the executive is
terminated by the Company other than for cause. Payments under these agreements consist of continuation of base salary for a period of 12
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The Company maintains strategic alliance relationships with third parties, including resellers, agents and systems integrators (each an Agent)
that market, sell and/or integrate the Company�s products and services. The cessation or termination of certain relationships, by the Company or
an Agent, may subject the Company to material liability and/or expense. This material liability and/or expense includes potential payments due
upon the termination or cessation of the relationship by either the Company or an Agent (which may be triggered by a change in control of either
party), costs related to the establishment of a direct sales presence or development of a new Agent in the territory. No such events of termination
or cessation have occurred through September 30, 2007. The Company is not able to reasonably estimate the amount of any such liability and/or
expense if such event were to occur, given the range of factors that could affect the ultimate determination of the liability including possible
claims related to the validity of the arrangements or contract terms. Actual payments from an event could be in the range of zero to $30 million.
If the Company reacquires the territorial rights for an applicable sales territory and establishes a direct sales presence, future commissions
otherwise payable to an Agent for existing customer maintenance contracts and other intangible assets may be assumed from the Agent. If any of
the foregoing were to occur, the Company may be subject to litigation and liability such that its operating results, cash flows and financial
condition could be materially and adversely affected.

12.  Preferred Stock

In August 2003, the Company issued and sold 300,300 shares of Series D-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series D-1 Preferred), along
with warrants to purchase up to 6,006,006 shares of common stock at a price of $3.33 per share,
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in a private placement to several investment partnerships managed by Advent International Corporation for an aggregate purchase price of
$100.0 million.

On May 16, 2006, the Holders of the Series D Preferred converted 30,000 shares into 3,000,000 shares of common stock. In December 2006, the
holders of the Series D-1 Preferred converted their remaining 270,300 shares into 27,030,000 shares of common stock.  In December 2006, the
Company announced that it would redeem any shares of its Series D-2 Preferred that were not converted by their holders into common shares by
January 30, 2007.  In January 2007, the remaining 63,064 shares of Series D-2 Preferred were converted by their holder into 6,306,400 shares of
common stock.  Accordingly, all Series D preferred was converted into common stock during fiscal 2006 and 2007. No preferred stock was
outstanding during the three months ended September 30, 2007.

In the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, the accretion of preferred stock discount and dividend consist of the following (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
Accrual of dividends on Series D preferred stock $ � $ (2,812)
Accretion of discount on Series D preferred stock � (924)
Total $ � $ (3,736)

Registration Rights

In May 2006, the Company received a demand letter from the Series D-1 Preferred holders, in accordance with the terms of their investor rights
agreement with the Company, requesting registration of all of the shares of common stock issued or issuable upon the conversion of Series D-1
Preferred and the exercise of their warrants in connection with an underwritten public offering per the terms defined in the investor rights
agreement.  The Company is required to register the underlying shares at its expense.  As of September 30, 2007, the total number of outstanding
shares of common stock that would be included by their registration demand letter is 30,027,336.

13.  Segment Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available that is evaluated
regularly by the chief operating decision maker, or decision making group, in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.
The Company�s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company has three operating segments: license, consulting services and maintenance and training. The Company also evaluates certain
subsets of business segments by vertical industries as well as by product categories. The chief operating decision maker assesses financial
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performance and allocates resources based upon the three lines of business.

The license line of business is engaged in the development and licensing of software. The consulting services line of business offers
implementation, advanced process control, real-time optimization and other consulting services in order to provide its customers with complete
solutions. The maintenance and training line of business provides customers with a wide range of support services that include on-site support,
telephone support, software updates and various forms of training on how to use the Company�s products.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

The following table presents a summary of operating segments (in thousands):

License
Consulting

Services
Maintenance
and Training Total

Three Months Ended September 30,
2007�
Revenues from external customers $ 31,119 $ 13,161 $ 20,558 $ 64,838
Controllable expenses 14,736 10,310 3,264 28,310
Controllable margin(1) $ 16,383 $ 2,851 $ 17,294 $ 36,528
Three Months Ended September 30,
2006�
Revenues from external customers $ 28,118 $ 16,334 $ 19,713 $ 64,165
Controllable expenses 13,550 11,013 3,251 27,814
Controllable margin(1) $ 14,568 $ 5,321 $ 16,462 $ 36,351

(1)  The Controllable margins reported reflect only the expenses of the operating segment and do not
contain an allocation for selling and marketing, general and administrative, development and other corporate expenses
incurred in support of the segments.
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Reconciliation to income (loss) before provision for income taxes:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
Total controllable margin for reportable segments $ 36,528 $ 36,351
Cost of license and amortization for technology related costs (3,376) (5,051)
Marketing (4,322) (4,750)
Research and development (8,778) (6,286)
General and administrative and overhead (17,137) (17,109)
Restructuring charges and FTC legal costs (7,226) (1,446)
Gain (loss) on sales and disposals of assets (20) 15
Stock compensation (2,502) (1,741)
Corporate/executive bonuses (1,546) �
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 163 (67)
Interest and other income and expense 1,804 532
(Loss) income before provision for income taxes $ (6,412) $ 448

14.  Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements�
(SFAS No. 157). SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 emphasizes that fair value
measurement is market-based, not entity-specific, and establishes a fair value hierarchy in which the highest priority is
quoted prices in active markets. Under SFAS No. 157, fair value measurements are disclosed according to their level
within this hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 except for
nonrecurring fair value measurements of nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, for which the effective date is
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. The Company has not yet determined the effect that the application
of SFAS No. 157 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.� SFAS No. 159 permits
entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and provides entities with the opportunity to mitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. Once an entity has elected the fair value option for designated financial instruments and other items, changes in fair value must be
recognized in the statement of operations.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company has not
yet determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 159 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), �Business Combinations,� which replaces SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. The Statement also establishes disclosure requirements which
will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008.  The Company expects SFAS No. 141R will have an impact on accounting for business combinations once adopted
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but the effect will be primarily dependent upon future acquisitions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, �Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements � an
amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,� which establishes accounting and reporting standards for
ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income
attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent�s ownership interest and the valuation
of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. The Statement also establishes
reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of
the parent and
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the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company has not
determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 160 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133.�  This statement changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS No. 161
requires enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged
items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect
an entity�s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008.  The Company has not yet determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 161
will have on its consolidated financial statements.

15.  Restatement of Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsequent to the issuance of the Company�s unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three months ended September 30,
2006 (as previously restated), the Company identified errors related to the accounting for sales of customer installment and trade receivables to
financial institutions or unconsolidated special purpose entities, which the Company refers to as �receivable sale facilities.�  The sales of
receivables were designed to meet �true sale� criteria for legal and accounting purposes.  The transferred receivables serve as collateral under the
receivable sales facilities and limited recourse exists against the Company in the event that the underlying customer does not pay.  These
transactions historically had been accounted and reported as sales of assets for accounting purposes, rather than as secured borrowings.  As
further described below, however, the Company should not have derecognized the receivables and should have recorded the cash received from
the transfer of such assets as a secured borrowing in the Company�s consolidated balance sheet, as it effectively retained control of these assets
for accounting purposes. As further discussed below, the Company also identified other errors related to revenue recognition and income tax
accounting.

The Company effectively retained control for accounting purposes of the transferred assets as a result of engaging in new
transactions with its customers to sell additional software and/or extend the terms of existing license arrangements,
which were the basis for these installments receivable.  The new transactions would sometimes consolidate the
remaining balance of the outstanding receivables with additional amounts due under the new or extended software
license arrangement.  Some receivable sale facilities allowed for this consolidation, subject to a limit, which was
exceeded.  Other receivable sale facilities did not allow for this method of consolidation.  Accordingly, the amount
and/or method of consolidation of these receivables resulted in the lack of legal isolation of the assets from the
Company, which is one of the requirements to achieve and maintain sale accounting treatment under SFAS No. 140. 
The Company believes that for accounting purposes, it retained control of the receivables transferred to the receivable
sales facilities for each of the years in the three-year period ended June 30, 2007 and that none of the sales of
receivables during this period qualified for sale accounting treatment under the provisions of SFAS No. 140.  This
accounting conclusion does not alter the arrangements with the Company�s customers, and the Company does not
believe that the accounting conclusion changed its relationship with the financial institutions, including the limited
recourse that such financial institutions have against the Company beyond the transferred receivables.
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The Company�s previous accounting treatment was to inappropriately account for these transactions as sales of assets. 
Accordingly, under its previous accounting treatment, the Company immediately recognized any gains and losses
upon the transfer of assets and then recorded a �retained interest in sold receivables� for its continuing interest, if any,
which was initially recorded at the estimated fair value.  The retained interest in sold receivables was subject to
periodic accretion of this interest (recorded through interest income) through the term of the respective arrangement. 
No recognition of the transferred receivables or any debt obligation was recognized for these transactions.

To correct these errors, the Company has recorded the transferred receivables, which are reported as �collateralized receivables� on the Company�s
condensed consolidated balance sheet, and a secured debt obligation for the amount of cash received from the receivable sale facilities.  There
are no longer gains and losses recognized upon the transfer of these assets and any costs incurred have now been recorded as debt issuance
costs.  The Company now recognizes interest income from the retained installments receivable and interest expense on the secured borrowing. 
The previous accounting for the retained interest in the transferred installments receivables, including the accretion included in interest income,
has been eliminated as the entire interest in the receivables has been included in the Company�s condensed consolidated balance sheet.  Bad debt
provisions related to the transferred receivables are now reflected in the Company�s condensed consolidated statements of operations.  The
Company has also recorded the currency exchange gains or losses on installments receivable that were previously not recorded.  The funding
received from the receivable sales facilities was previously recorded as cash flows from operations in the Company�s condensed consolidated
statements of cash flows.  The Company has corrected the presentation to include the proceeds from and repayments of the secured borrowings
as components of cash flows from financing activities in the condensed consolidated
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statements of cash flows.  Repayments from collateralized receivables and operating cash flows are recognized upon customer payment of
amounts due.

In addition, the Company identified other errors related to previously reported financial statements in the course of preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2007.  These errors relate to the timing of revenue recognition, corrections to the Company�s
income tax accounting, and other items.  Errors in the timing of revenue recognition primarily relate to the inappropriate application of contract
accounting under SOP No. 97-2.  For these bundled arrangements, the Company determined that the service element could not be accounted for
separately from the software licenses. The Company had deferred revenue recognition related to the license component until the services
arrangements were complete, instead of recognizing revenue under the arrangements as services were performed.  In other arrangements, the
Company determined that service revenue was recognized prior to the delivery of the software license, and the Company did not have VSOE of
fair value for the undelivered license or the price of the arrangement was not fixed and determinable. The Company has corrected these errors
and recognized revenue over the period the services were performed for these bundled arrangements or when the criteria for revenue recognition
were met.

The Company also identified errors in its historical income tax accounting which impacted the effective tax rate applied to the quarter. The
errors included certain international tax obligations, primarily arising from errors in the application of the Company�s transfer pricing policies for
transactions among consolidated subsidiaries, failure to properly account for deemed dividends from the Company�s consolidated subsidiaries as
a result of the lack of settlement of intercompany transactions, errors in the accounting for revaluation of foreign denominated transactions, and
other errors.  The Company has corrected the calculation of its tax provisions for these obligations in the applicable year, including recognition
of interest and penalties attributable to the adjusted tax provisions.

In order to correct the errors described above, the Company has restated its condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months
ended September 30, 2006 primarily to reflect (a) additional interest income related to the collateralized receivables of $3.9 million,
(b) additional interest expense related to the secured borrowings of $4.1 million, (c) decreases in losses on sale and disposals of assets of $5.8
million, (d) additional provisions for bad debt associated with the collateralized receivables and other adjustments of $0.4 million, (e) an
increase in revenue related to certain arrangements that bundled software licenses with services of $0.4 million, (f) a decrease in revenue related
to errors in the timing of revenue recognition of $0.2 million, and (g) additional provisions for income taxes of $1.2 million.  The corresponding
impacts on the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows have been reflected for the three months ended September 30, 2006.

Cash flow adjustments reflecting in this form 10-Q/A

Subsequent to our issuance of the condensed consolidated financial statements on Form 10-Q for the three months ended September 30, 2007,
and in connection with the review of our interim financial statements for the quarters ended December 31, 2007 and March 31, 2008, we
identified an error in the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows related to the reported repayments of secured borrowings.  The
previously reported amounts of repayments of secured borrowings within net cash used in financing activities of $43.4 million and $26.5 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, did not appropriately reflect certain amounts due that were reclassified
and included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the condensed consolidated balance sheets and not yet disbursed in those periods.  We
should have considered the reclassification that created a reduction in the secured borrowings and recognition of the current liability as a
non-cash transaction until disbursements were made to the financial institutions.  Accordingly, our net cash flows from operating activities was
also misstated as a result of the inclusion of the effects of the changes in the current liabilities within the cash flows from operating activities
section of the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows.  As such, for the three months ended September 30, 2007, the net cash provided
by operating activities was overstated by $7.8 million and net cash used in financing activities was overstated by $7.8 million.  For the three
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months ended September 30, 2006, net cash provided by operating activities was understated by $9.1 million and net cash provided by financing
activities was overstated by $9.1 million.  The error in the determination of the timing of these payments did not impact the total cash
repayments to the financial institutions, any change in total cash flows, or ending cash balances at the end of any reporting period, the condensed
consolidated balance sheets or condensed consolidated statements of operations.

The table below summarizes the effect of this error on the condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the three months ended
September 30, 2007 and 2006 as compared to Form 10-Q initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 11, 2008:

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2007

For the Three Months Ended
September 30, 2006

As Previously
As Previously

Reported As Restated
Reported and

Restated As Restated
(In thousands)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other
current liabilities $ 4,802 $ (3,011) $ (11,760) $ (2,657)
Net cash provided by operating activities 22,342 14,529 1,740 10,843

Repayments of secured borrowings (43,399) (35,586) (26,483) (35,586)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (22,207) (14,394) 4,827 (4,276)
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In addition, we have identified an error in the adjustment we made to the accumulated deficit as of July 1, 2007, when we adopted FASB
Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,� or FIN 48.  Under FIN 48, an
entity should recognize a tax benefit when it is �more-likely-than-not,� based on the technical merits, that the position would be sustained upon
examination by a taxing authority. The amount to be recognized, if the �more-likely-than-not� threshold is passed, should be measured as the
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full
knowledge of all relevant information. Furthermore, any change in the recognition, derecognition or measurement of a tax position should be
recognized in the period in which the change occurs.  As a result of the implementation of FIN 48 on July 1, 2007, we had previously recognized
an increase of $3.0 million in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, with an offsetting increase to the accumulated deficit.  We have
subsequently determined that this position met the criteria of more likely than not as our tax position in this matter is viewed as sustainable, and
we believe it is appropriate to reverse this $3.0 million liability and the offsetting increase in accumulated deficit as of July 1, 2007.  The
adjustment for the reversal of this liability as of September 30, 2006 is reflected in the table below.

As of
September 30, 2007

As Previously
Reported As Restated

(In thousands)

Other liabilities $ 30,530 $ 27,562
Accumulated deficit (373,459) (370,491)
Total stockholders� equity 129,886 132,854
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Revenue and Expense Adjustments

Set forth below are the adjustments to the Company�s previously issued unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the three
months ended September 30, 2006.

Three Months ended September 30, 2006
As

Previously
Reported Adjustments As Restated

(In thousands, except per share data)
Revenues:
Software licenses $ 28,076 $ 42 $ 28,118
Service and other 36,246 (199) 36,047
Total revenues 64,322 (157) 64,165
Cost of revenues:
Cost of software licenses 3,149 � 3,149
Cost of service and other 17,481 � 17,481
Amortization of technology related intangible assets 1,902 � 1,902
Total cost of revenues 22,532 � 22,532
Gross profit 41,790 (157) 41,633
Operating costs:
Selling and marketing 21,210 � 21,210
Research and development 8,490 � 8,490
General and administrative 10,084 435 10,519
Restructuring charges 1,446 � 1,446
Loss (gain) on sales and disposals of assets 5,769 (5,784) (15)
Total operating costs 46,999 (5,349) 41,650
Income (loss) from operations (5,209) 5,192 (17)
Interest income 1,248 3,872 5,120
Interest expense (481) (4,107) (4,588)
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) (94) 27 (67)
(Loss) income before provision for taxes (4,536) 4,984 448
Provision for income taxes (881) (1,165) (2,046)
Net loss (5,417) 3,819 (1,598)
Accretion of preferred stock discount and dividends (3,736) � (3,736)
Loss applicable to common shareholders $ (9,153) $ 3,819 $ (5,334)
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to common shareholders $ (0.17) $ 0.07 $ (0.10)
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding 52,801 � 52,801
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Cash Flow Adjustments

Set forth below are the adjustments to the Company�s previously issued unaudited condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the three
months ended September 30, 2006.

Three Months ended September 30, 2006
As

Previously
Reported Adjustments As Restated

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (5,417) $ 3,819 $ (1,598)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,271 � 5,271
Net foreign currency (gains) losses (321) � (321)
Loss on securitization of installments receivable 5,672 (5,672) �
Stock-based compensation 1,741 � 1,741
Accretion of discount on retained interest in sold receivables (766) 766 �
Non-cash interest expense from amortization of debt costs � 205 205
Provision for doubtful accounts � 330 330
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (1,426) (28) (1,454)
Unbilled services 10 102 112
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 771 (76) 695
Installments and collateralized receivables 18,587 (3,840) 14,747
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities (12,648) 9,991 (2,657)
Deferred revenue (4,783) (79) (4,862)
Other liabilities (1,366) � (1,366)
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,325 5,518 10,843
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and leasehold improvements (957) � (957)
Capitalized computer software development costs (2,744) � (2,744)
Decrease (increase) in other long-term assets 86 (318) (232)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,615) (318) (3,933)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan 423 � 423
Exercise of stock options and warrants 551 � 551
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations (50) � (50)
Debt issuance cost � (1,124) (1,124)
Proceeds from secured borrowing � 31,510 31,510
Repayments of secured borrowing � (35,586) (35,586)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 924 (5,200) (4,276)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (40) � (40)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,594 � 2,594
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 86,272 � 86,272
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 88,866 $ � $ 88,866
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Item 2.  Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated
financial statements and the related notes appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-Q/A and in our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results
may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of a number of factors, including those set forth in
�Item 1A. Risk Factors� in Part II of this Form 10-Q/A.

The following discussion gives effect to the restatements discussed in Note 15 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in
this Form 10-Q/A. Our fiscal year ends on June 30, and references in this Form 10-Q/A to a specific fiscal year are the twelve months ended
June 30 of such year (for example, �fiscal 2008� refers to the year ending June 30, 2008).

Overview

We are a leading supplier of integrated software and services to the process industries, which consist of oil and gas, petroleum, chemicals,
pharmaceuticals and other industries that manufacture and produce products from a chemical process. We provide a comprehensive, integrated
suite of software applications that utilize proprietary empirical models of chemical manufacturing processes to improve plant and process
design, economic evaluation, production, production planning and scheduling, and operational performance, and an array of services designed to
optimize the utilization of these products by our customers.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The preparation of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues, expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or
conditions. The significant accounting policies that we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our reported
financial results include the following:

•  revenue recognition for both software licenses and fixed-fee consulting services;

•  impairment of long-lived assets, goodwill and intangible assets;
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•  accounting for contingencies;

•  accounting for income taxes;

•  allowance for doubtful accounts;

•  accounting for transfers of financial assets;

•  restructuring accruals; and

•  accounting for stock-based compensation.

Revenue Recognition�Software Licenses

We recognize software license revenue in accordance with SOP No. 97-2, as amended by SOP No. 98-4 and SOP No. 98-9, as well as the
various interpretations and clarifications of those statements. When we provide consulting services considered not essential to the functionality
of the software, and for which vendor-specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value has been established, we recognize revenue for the
delivered software when the basic criteria of SOP No. 97-2 are met. As our arrangements generally meet these criteria, revenue is generally
recognized upon delivery. VSOE has been established for software maintenance services, training and consulting services rates. When we
provide consulting services that are considered essential to the functionality of the software, or is not described in the contract such that the total
price of the arrangement would be expected to vary as the result of the inclusion or exclusion of the services, and involves significant
production, modification or customization of the licensed software, we recognize such revenue and any related software licenses in accordance
with SOP No. 81-1, �Accounting for
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Performance of Construction Type and Certain Performance Type Contracts.� Four basic criteria must be satisfied before software license
revenue can be recognized:

•  persuasive evidence of an arrangement between us and a third party exists;

•  delivery of our product has occurred;

•  the sales price for the product is fixed or determinable; and

•  collection of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Our management uses its judgment concerning the satisfaction of these criteria, particularly the criteria relating to the determination of whether
the fee is fixed and determinable and the criteria relating to the collectibility of the receivables, particularly the installments receivable, relating
to such sales. These two criteria are particularly relevant to reseller transactions where, specifically, revenue is only recognized upon delivery to
the end user, since the determination of whether the fee is fixed or determinable and whether collection is probable is more difficult. Should
changes and conditions cause management to determine that these criteria are not met for certain future transactions, all or substantially all of the
software license revenue recognized for such transactions could be deferred.

Revenue Recognition�Fixed-Fee Consulting Services

We recognize revenue associated with fixed-fee service contracts in accordance with the proportional performance method, measured by the
percentage of costs (primarily labor) incurred to date as compared to the estimated total costs (primarily labor) for each contract.  When a loss is
anticipated on a contract, the full amount of the anticipated loss is provided currently. Our management uses its judgment concerning the
estimation of the total costs to complete the contract, considering a number of factors including the experience of the personnel that are
performing the services and the overall complexity of the project. We have a significant amount of experience in the estimation of the total costs
to complete a contract and have not typically recorded material losses related to these estimates. We do not expect the accuracy of our estimates
to change significantly in the future. Should changes and conditions cause actual results to differ significantly from management�s estimates,
revenue recognized in future periods could be adversely affected.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets, Goodwill and Intangible Assets
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In accordance with SFAS No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,� we review the carrying value of long-lived
assets when circumstances dictate that they should be reevaluated, based upon the expected future operating cash flows of our business or other
factors that trigger an evaluation for potential impairment.  The evaluation of the results of any impairment evaluation is based upon our
expected future cash flows.  These future cash flow estimates are based on historical results, adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future
markets and operating conditions, and are updated based on actual operating trends. Historically, actual results have occasionally differed from
our estimated future cash flow estimates. In the future, actual results may differ materially from these estimates, and accordingly cause a full
impairment of our long-lived assets.  We had $18.6 million of long-lived assets at September 30, 2007.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� we conduct at least an annual assessment on December 31 of the
carrying value of our goodwill assets, which is based on either estimates of future income from the reporting units or estimates of the market
value of the reporting units, based on comparable recent transactions. These estimates of future income are based upon historical results,
adjusted to reflect our best estimate of future markets and operating conditions. Historically, actual results have occasionally differed from our
estimated future cash flow estimates. In the future, actual results may differ materially from these estimates. In addition, the relevancy of recent
transactions used to establish market value for our reporting units is based on management�s judgment.  We had $20.1 million of goodwill
recorded at September 30, 2007.

We conducted an annual assessment of the carrying value of our goodwill assets as of December 31, 2006 in accordance with SFAS No. 142.
The assessment indicated that there was no impairment of the carrying value of our goodwill assets as of that date. The timing and size of any
future impairment charges involves the application of management�s judgment and estimates and could result in the impairment of all or
substantially all of our long-lived assets, intangible assets and goodwill.

Accounting for Contingencies

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� we accrue loss contingencies if, in the opinion of management, an adverse
outcome is probable and such outcome can be reasonably estimated.  Significant management judgment is required in assessing the presence of
potential loss contingencies, the probability of an adverse outcome, and the amount of any such estimate of an adverse outcome.  Historically,
we have accrued loss contingencies primarily associated with outstanding litigation and, prior to the adoption of FIN 48, income tax exposures
in foreign tax jurisdictions.
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We accrue estimated future legal fees associated with outstanding litigation for which management has determined that it is probable that a loss
contingency exists. This requires management to estimate the amount of legal fees that will be incurred in the defense of the litigation. These
estimates are particularly dependant on our expectations of the scope, length to complete and complexity of the claims. Historically, as these
factors have changed after our original estimates, we have adjusted our estimates accordingly. In the future, additional adjustments may be
recorded as the scope, length or complexity of outstanding litigation changes.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process involves estimating our actual current tax liabilities
together with the assessment of temporary differences resulting from differing timing treatment of items, such as reserves and accruals, for tax
and accounting purposes. These differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated balance sheet
or disclosed in our footnotes to the financial statements.  Deferred tax assets also result from unused operating loss carryforwards, research and
development tax credit carryforwards and foreign tax credit carryforwards. We assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be
recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we establish a valuation allowance.  Adjustments
to the valuation allowance are included in the tax provision in our statement of operations in the period they become known or estimated.

Significant management judgment is required in determining any valuation allowance recorded against these deferred tax assets and liabilities.
The valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income for jurisdictions in which we operate and the period over which our
deferred tax assets may be recoverable. In fiscal 2007 and as of September 30, 2007, we provided a full valuation allowance for all net deferred
tax assets in the United States and most other tax jurisdictions.

Our U.S. and foreign tax returns are subject to periodic compliance examinations by various local and national tax authorities through periods
defined by tax codes in the applicable jurisdiction. The years prior to 2004 are closed in the U.S., although the utilization of net operating loss
carry forwards generated in earlier periods will keep these periods open for examination. Our operating entities in Canada are subject to audit
from year 2000 forward, in the UK  from 2006 forward, and other international subsidiaries from 2002 forward.  In connection with
examinations of tax filings, tax contingencies can arise from differing interpretations of applicable tax laws and regulations relative to the
amount, timing or proper inclusion or exclusion of revenues and expenses in taxable income or loss.  For periods that remain subject to audit, we
have asserted and unasserted potential assessments that are subject to final tax settlements.

Our income tax expense includes amounts intended to satisfy income tax assessments, including interest and penalties, that could result from the
examination of our tax returns. Determining the amount of an estimated obligation, if any, for such assessments requires a significant amount of
judgment. We evaluate such tax uncertainties in accordance with the requirements of Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertain
Tax Positions, an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,�or FIN 48, based on information currently available, and
have accrued for income tax liabilities that meet both the probable and estimable criteria of FIN 48. These estimates
are updated over time upon receipt of more definitive information from taxing authorities, completion of tax audits,
expiration of statutes of limitation, or upon occurrence of other events. The amounts ultimately paid upon resolution
of such contingencies could be materially different from the amounts previously recorded and therefore could have a
material impact on our consolidated results of operations as additional information becomes available. The accrual for
uncertain tax positions, including penalties and interest, totaled $24.0 million as of September 30, 2007, of which
$16.0 million is included in accrued expenses as a current liability and $8.0 million is included in other liabilities as a
long term obligation. The ultimate amount of taxes due for these periods will not be known until examinations are
completed or the audit periods are closed and settled.

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

50



Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We make judgments as to our ability to collect outstanding receivables and provide allowances for the portion of receivables for which
collection is doubtful. Provisions are made based upon a specific review of all significant outstanding invoices. In
determining these provisions, we analyze our historical collection experience and current economic trends as well as
the status of specific receivables. If the historical data we use to calculate the allowance provided for doubtful
accounts do not reflect the future ability to collect outstanding receivables, additional provisions for doubtful accounts
may be required for all or substantially all of certain receivable balances.

Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets

We derecognize financial assets when control has been surrendered in compliance with SFAS No. 140, �Accounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.�  Transfers of assets that meet the requirements of SFAS No. 140 for sale accounting
treatment are removed from the balance sheet and gains or losses on the sale are recognized.  If the conditions for sale accounting treatment are
not met, or are no longer met, these transactions are accounted for as secured borrowings.  The determination of the accounting treatment under
SFAS No. 140 requires
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significant judgment relative to the determination of whether the criteria to achieve sale accounting treatment have been achieved, including
whether the transferred assets have been legally isolated from us.  We have accounted for all transfers of assets during the three months ended
September 30, 2006 and 2007 as secured borrowings. Accordingly, the transferred assets are recorded as collateralized receivables in our
consolidated balance sheet and we have accounted for the cash received from these transactions as secured borrowings.  Transaction costs
associated with secured borrowings, if any, are treated as borrowing costs and recognized in interest expense.  Such customer payments are
included in the operating section of our consolidated statements of cash flows.  The cash received from and payments made on the secured
borrowings are included in the financing section of our consolidated statements of cash flows.

Accounting for Restructuring Accruals

We follow SFAS No. 146, �Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities� in accounting for restructuring activities. In
accounting for these obligations, we are required to make assumptions related to the amounts of employee severance, benefits and related costs
and to the time period over which facilities will remain vacant, sublease terms, sublease rates and discount rates. We base our estimates and
assumptions on the best information available at the time the obligation has arisen. These estimates are reviewed and revised as facts and
circumstances dictate; changes in these estimates could have a material effect on the amount accrued on our balance sheet, the restructuring
charges incurred and our estimates of future costs under existing restructuring programs.

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R), �Share-Based Payment,� effective July 1, 2005. Under the fair value provisions of this statement, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the value of the award and is recognized as expense over the vesting period. SFAS
No. 123(R) requires significant judgment and the use of estimates, particularly for assumptions such as stock price volatility and expected option
lives, as well as whether awards with performance conditions will vest, to recognize stock-based compensation costs. If different assumptions
were used, stock-based compensation expense and our results of operations could fluctuate significantly.

Summary of Restructuring Accruals

During the three months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded $7.2 million in restructuring charges primarily related to the relocation of our
corporate headquarters under the May 2007 restructuring plan discussed below.

At September 30, 2007, total restructuring liabilities for all plans included $0.7 million for employee severance, benefits, and related costs and
$18.7 million for the closure or ceasing to use facilities. Management anticipates that payments of $5.2 million will be made over the next
twelve months and the remaining $14.2 million will be made through 2012.
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For additional information about our restructurings, see Note 10 to the condensed consolidated financial statements included in this
Form 10-Q/A.

 Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2007

In May 2007, we initiated a plan to relocate our corporate headquarters from Cambridge to Burlington, Massachusetts.  The relocation resulted
in us ceasing to use our prior corporate headquarters leased space, subleasing the space to a third party, and the relocation to a new facility. 
During the year ended June 30, 2007, we recorded a charge of $0.1 million associated with the relocation of certain departments to temporary
space.  The closure and relocation actions resulted in an aggregate charge of approximately $6.1 million, with $6.0 million of the charge
recognized in the three months ended September 30, 2007.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $5.8 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining lease payments.  During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2007 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities
Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ �
Restructuring charge 6,068
Payments (289)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 5,779
Expected final payment date September 2012

Subsequent to September 30, 2007, we incurred additional charges of $0.3 million related to the Cambridge facility. The additional activities
were completed by October 2007.
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Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2005

In May 2005, we initiated a plan to consolidate several corporate functions and to reduce its operating expenses. The plan to reduce operating
expenses primarily resulted in headcount reductions, and also included the termination of a contract and the consolidation of facilities. These
actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $3.8 million, recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. During the years ended
June 30, 2006 and 2007, we recorded an additional $1.8 million and $4.6 million, respectively, related to headcount reductions, relocation costs
and facility consolidations associated with the May 2005 plan that did not qualify for accrual at June 30, 2005. During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, we recorded an additional $0.4 million primarily in severance and relocation expenses for employees that were notified or
relocation expenses that were incurred during the period.

Under this restructuring plan, we have yet to incur charges related to the closure of certain offices and relocation of certain employees included
in the planned actions. We expect that these charges will be approximately $1.9 million and will primarily be completed by June 2008.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $0.5 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining severance obligations. During the three months
ended September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2005 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related Costs Total

Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ �$ 688 $ 688
Restructuring charge 149 285 434
Payments (149) (437) (586)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ �$ 536 $ 536
Expected final payment date March 2008

Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2004

In June 2004, we initiated a plan to reduce our operating expenses in order to better align our operating cost structure with the current economic
environment and to improve operating margins. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in the consolidation of facilities, headcount
reductions, and the termination of operating contracts. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring charge of $23.5 million, recorded in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. During the year ended June 30, 2005, we recorded $14.4 million related to headcount reductions and facility
consolidations associated with the June 2004 restructuring plan that did not qualify for accrual at June 30, 2004. In addition, we recorded
$0.4 million in restructuring charges related to the accretion of the discounted restructuring accrual and a $0.8 million decrease to the accrual
related to changes in estimates of severance benefits and sublease terms. During the year ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, we recorded a
$0.7 million increase and a $0.2 million decrease, respectively, to the accrual primarily due to a change in the estimate of future operating costs
and sublease assumptions associated with the facilities.  During the three months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded an additional $0.6
million expense primarily related to changes in the estimates of future operating costs associated with the facilities.
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As of September 30, 2007, there was $5.1 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining severance obligations and lease payments.
During the three months ended September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2004 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related Costs Total

Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ 4,959 $ 92 $ 5,051
Restructuring charge 571 1 572
Restructuring charge�Accretion 73 � 73
Payments (611) (26) (637)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 4,992 $ 67 $ 5,059
Expected final payment date September 2012 August 2008
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Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended December 31, 2002

In October 2002, management initiated a plan to further reduce operating expenses in response to first quarter revenue results that were below
expectations and to general economic uncertainties. The plan to reduce operating expenses resulted in headcount reductions, consolidation of
facilities, and discontinuation of development and support for certain non-critical products. These actions resulted in an aggregate restructuring
charge of $28.7 million. During fiscal 2005, 2006, and 2007, we recorded a $7.0 million, a $1.0 million increase, and a $0.2 million decrease,
respectively, to the accrual primarily due to a change in the estimate of the facility vacancy term, extending to the term of the lease. During the
three months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded an additional $0.1 million expense primarily related to changes in the estimates of future
operating costs associated with the facilities.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $7.7 million in accrued expenses relating to the remaining lease payments. During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2003 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities
Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ 8,043
Restructuring charge 80
Payments (440)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 7,683
Expected final payment date September 2012

Restructuring charges originally arising in the three months ended June 30, 2002

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, management initiated a plan to reduce operating expenses and to restructure operations around our two
primary product lines, engineering software and manufacturing/supply chain software. We reduced worldwide headcount by approximately
10%, or 200 employees, closed and consolidated facilities, and disposed of certain assets, resulting in an aggregate restructuring charge of
$13.2 million. During fiscal 2005, we recorded a $0.2 million increase to the accrual due to changes in estimates of sublease assumptions and
severance settlements. During fiscal 2006 and 2007, we recorded less than $0.1 million increases to the accrual due to changes in sublease
assumptions.

As of September 30, 2007, there was $0.4 million remaining in accrued expenses relating to lease payments. During the three months ended
September 30, 2007, the following activity was recorded (in thousands):

Fiscal 2002 Restructuring Plan

Closure/
Consolidation

of Facilities

Employee
Severance,

Benefits, and
Related
Costs Total
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Accrued expenses, July 1, 2007 $ 384 $ 48 $ 432
Change in estimate � Revised assumptions 2 3 5
Payments (50) � (50)
Accrued expenses, September 30, 2007 $ 336 $ 51 $ 387
Expected final payment date September 2012 March 2008
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the percentages of total revenues represented by certain condensed consolidated statement of operations data for
the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
Software licenses 48.0% 43.8%
Service and other 52.0 56.2
Total revenues 100.0 100.0
Cost of software licenses 5.2 4.9
Cost of service and other 25.2 27.2
Amortization of technology related intangible assets 0.0 3.0
Total cost of revenues 30.4 35.1
Gross profit 69.6 64.9
Operating costs:
Selling and marketing 34.4 33.1
Research and development 18.0 13.2
General and administrative 19.0 16.4
Restructuring charges 11.1 2.3
Loss on sale of assets 0.0 0.0
Total operating costs 82.5 65.0
Loss from operations (12.9) (0.1)
Interest income 9.6 8.0
Interest expense (6.8) (7.2)
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) 0.3 (0.1)
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes (9.8)% 0.6%

Comparison of the Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 and 2006

Revenues.  Revenues are derived from software licenses, consulting services and maintenance and training. Total
revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased 1.0% to $64.8 million from $64.2 million in the
three months ended September 30, 2006. Total revenues from customers outside the United States were $41.2 million
or 63.5% of total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as compared to $35.3 million or 55.7% of
total revenues, for the three ended September 30, 2006. The geographical mix of revenues can vary from period to
period.

Software license revenues represented 48.0% of total revenues for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 43.8% for the three
months ended September 30, 2006. Revenues from software licenses in the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased 10.7% to
$31.1 million from $28.1 million in the three months ended September 30, 2006.  Software license revenues are attributable to software license
renewals of term contracts with existing users, the expansion of existing customer relationships through licenses for additional users, licenses of
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additional software products and, to a lesser extent, to the addition of new customers. We believe that the increase in license revenues
principally reflected continued acceptance and expansion of our new and existing product offerings, the operational
execution of our strategy to focus on license revenues, as well as strength in our energy, chemicals, and
engineering and construction end-markets.

Revenues from service and other consist of consulting services, post-contract support on software licenses, training and sales of documentation.
Revenues from service and other decreased 6.5% to $33.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 compared to $36.0 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in service and other revenues in the three month periods was primarily due to a $3.2
million decrease in consulting services, offset by a $0.8 million increase in post-contract support revenue resulting from increases in our
installed base of software licenses.  The decrease in consulting services is primarily due to a $1.8 million decrease in reimbursable expenses
included in revenue.
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Cost of Software Licenses.  Cost of software licenses consists of royalties, amortization of previously capitalized software
costs, costs related to the delivery of software, including disk duplication and third-party software costs, printing of
manuals and packaging. Cost of software licenses for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased to
$3.4 million from $3.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Cost of software licenses as a
percentage of revenues from software licenses was 10.8% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as
compared to 11.2% for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The cost increase was primarily due to a
$0.4 million increase in royalty expense offset by a $0.1 million decrease in amortization of capitalized software for
the three months ended September 30, 2007.  The reduction in cost as a percentage of revenue is due to the increase in
revenue relative to a base of costs which is primarily fixed.

Cost of Service and Other.  Cost of service and other consists of the cost of execution of application consulting services,
technical support expenses and the cost of training services.  Cost of service for the three months ended September 30,
2007 decreased 6.5% to $16.3 million from $17.5 million in the three months ended September 30, 2006.  Cost of
service and other as a percentage of revenues from service and other remained unchanged at 48.5% for the three
months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006.  The cost reduction was primarily due to a $1.8 million reduction in
reimbursable consulting costs and a $0.2 million reduction in rent and facility costs, partially offset by an increase of
$0.2 million in employee compensation costs and a $0.3 million increase in external consultancy fees.  We expect the
absolute cost of service and other to remain relatively flat as a percentage of service revenue.

Amortization of Technology Related Intangible Assets.  Amortization of technology related intangible assets consists of the
amortization of intangible assets obtained from acquisitions.  These assets are generally being amortized over a period
of three to five years.  As of June 30, 2007, the balance of technology related intangible assets was fully amortized,
therefore no amortization expense was recorded for the three months ended September 30, 2007.  For the three months
ended September 30, 2006, we amortized $1.9 million in technology related intangible assets.

Selling and Marketing Expenses.  Selling and marketing expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased
5.1% to $22.3 million from $21.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and remained relatively
constant as a percentage of revenue at 34.4% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 33.1% for the three
months ended September 30, 2006.  The increase in cost is primarily due to a $1.1 million increase in payroll and
stock-based compensation costs.  We expect selling and marketing expenses to continue to increase in absolute terms,
but decline as a percentage of revenue as our revenue base continues to expand.

Research and Development Expenses.  Research and development expenses consist of personnel and outside consultancy
costs required to conduct our product development efforts.  Research and development expenses for the three months
ended September 30, 2007 increased 37.5% to $11.7 million from $8.5 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2006, and increased as a percentage of total revenues to 18.0% from 13.2%. The increase was primarily
attributable to a $2.8 million decrease in software costs eligible for capitalization and a $0.6 million increase in
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payroll and stock-based compensation expenses, partially offset by a $0.1 million decrease in consultancy fees and a
$0.1 million decrease in rent and facility costs.

We did not capitalize any software development costs for the three months ended September 30, 2007. The amount capitalized may vary from
period to period, depending upon the stage of development for the various projects in a given period.  We expect our research and
development expenses to increase in absolute terms as a result of the decline in software development costs eligible
for capitalization.

General and Administrative Expenses.  General and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel costs of
administrative, executive, financial and legal personnel, and outside professional fees. General and administrative
expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased 16.8% to $12.3 million from $10.5 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2006, and increased as a percentage of revenues to 19.0% from 16.4%. The
increase in costs is primarily due to increases of $1.2 million in payroll costs and $0.4 million in stock-based
compensation costs.

Restructuring Charges.  During the three months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded $7.2 million in restructuring
charges primarily related to the relocation of our corporate headquarters as part of the May 2007 restructuring plan.

Interest Income.  Interest income is generated from excess cash invested in highly liquid short term instruments, and from
the accretion of interest for software licenses sold pursuant to long term installment contracts. Under these installment
contracts, customers have the option to make annual payments over the license term or to make a single license fee
payment at the outset of the term. Historically, a substantial majority of customers have elected to make annual
payments. The increase in interest income is due to the increases in our average cash balance as well as increases in
installments receivable balances due from customers.  Interest income
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for the three months ended September 30, 2007 increased to $6.2 million from $5.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006.

Interest Expense.  Interest expense is incurred primarily from our secured borrowings.  The secured borrowings are
derived from our securitizations and borrowing arrangements with unrelated financial institutions. Interest expense for
the three months ended September 30, 2007 decreased to $4.4 million from $4.6 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2006. This decrease in interest expense resulted from a generally lower level of secured borrowings,
which are secured by our installment and other receivable contracts, and a lower level of high interest debt under the
Fiscal 2005 Securitization.

Foreign Currency Exchange Gain (Loss).  Foreign currency exchange gains and losses are primarily incurred as a result of the
revaluation of intercompany accounts denominated in foreign currencies and reflect movement in exchange rates
relative to the U.S. dollar. The revaluation adjustments are primarily unrealized gains and losses as the related
intercompany balances typically have not settled in cash. In the three months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded
a foreign currency exchange gain of $0.2 million compared to a loss of $0.1 million in the three months ended
September 30, 2006.  This change was primarily due to favorable exchange rate fluctuations.

Provision for Income Taxes.  Our provision for income taxes primarily relates to the accrual of interest on uncertain tax
positions, foreign withholding taxes, and income taxes attributable to our operating results in foreign jurisdictions. 
Income tax expense totaled $2.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as compared to $2.0 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2006 with the increase related to higher foreign income taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Resources

We historically have financed our operations through cash generated from operating activities, public offerings of our convertible debentures
and common stock, private offerings of our preferred stock and common stock, borrowings secured by our installment receivable contracts and
borrowings under bank credit facilities. As of September 30, 2007, we had cash and cash equivalents totaling $129.5 million. We believe our
current cash balances, future cash flows from our operations, and cash from future borrowings secured by installment receivable contracts will
be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next twelve months. However, we may need to obtain additional financing
thereafter or earlier if our current plans and projections prove to be inaccurate or our expected cash flows prove to be insufficient to fund our
operations because of lower-than-expected revenues, unanticipated expenses or other unforeseen difficulties. In addition, we may seek to take
advantage of favorable market conditions by raising additional funds from time to time through public or private security offerings, debt
financings, strategic alliances or other financing sources. Our ability to obtain additional financing will depend on a number of factors, including
market conditions, our operating performance and investor interest. These factors may make the timing, amount, terms and conditions of any
financing unattractive. They may also result in our incurring additional indebtedness or accepting stockholder dilution. If adequate funds are not
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available or are not available on acceptable terms, we may have to forego strategic acquisitions or investments, reduce or defer our development
activities, or delay our introduction of new products and services. Any of these actions may seriously harm our business and operating results.

Operating Cash Flow

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, operating activities provided $14.5 million of cash. A net loss of $9.0 million was offset by
non-cash expenses for stock-based compensation and depreciation and amortization totaling $5.3 million, a $14.5 million decrease in
installments and accounts receivable (collateralized and uncollateralized), a $3.0 million decrease in unbilled services, a $1.2 million decrease in
prepaid expenses and other current assets, and a $3.0 million decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

Financing Activities

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, cash used in financing activities was $14.4 million primarily due to net
payments in excess of secured borrowings proceeds which was $14.9 million, offset by $1.2 million received from the
issuance of common stock and the exercise of employee stock options.
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Borrowings collateralized by receivable contracts

Traditional Programs

We historically have maintained arrangements with financial institutions providing for borrowings that are secured by our installment and other
receivable contracts, and for which limited recourse exists against us.  Under our arrangements with General Electric Capital Corporation, Bank
of America and Silicon Valley Bank, both parties must agree to enter into each transaction and negotiate the borrowing amount and interest rate
secured by each receivable.  The customers� payments of the underlying receivables fund the repayment of the related borrowing amount.  The
weighted average interest rate on the secured borrowings was 7.7% at September 30, 2007.

The amount of total collateralized receivables for the Traditional Programs approximates the amount of the secured borrowings recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet.  The collateralized receivables earn interest income and the secured borrowings accrue borrowing costs at
approximately the same interest rates.  When cash is received from a customer by the Company, the collateralized receivable balance is reduced
and the related secured borrowing is reclassified to an accrued liability for amounts the Company must remit to the financial institution.  The
accrued liability is reduced when payment is remitted to the financial institutions.  The terms of the customer accounts receivable range from
amounts that are due within 30 days to installment receivables that are due over five years.  We act as the servicer for the receivables in one of
the three arrangements.

Under these arrangements, we received aggregate cash proceeds of $20.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007.  As of
September 30, 2007, we had outstanding secured borrowings of $164.6 million that were secured by collateralized receivables totaling $167.3
million under the Traditional Programs.

Availability under these arrangements is dependent upon our generation of additional customer receivables and the financial institutions
willingness to continue to enter into these transactions.  We estimate that there was in excess of $67.8 million available under the arrangements
at September 30, 2007. We expect to continue to have the ability to borrow under the arrangements, as the collection of the collateralized
receivables and resulting payment of the borrowing obligation will reduce the outstanding balance, and the availability under the arrangements
can be increased.

Under the terms of the Traditional Programs, we have transferred the receivables to the financial institutions with limited financial recourse. 
Potential recourse obligations are primarily related to one program that requires us to pay interest to the financial institution when the underlying
customer has not paid by the due date. This recourse is limited to a maximum period of 90 days after the due date.  The amount of installment
receivables within the program that has this potential recourse obligation is $45.2 million at September 30, 2007.  This recourse obligation is
recognized as interest expense as incurred and totaled $0.4 million and $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006 and 2007,
respectively.  In addition, we have recourse obligations totaling $1.6 million at September 30, 2007 if the underlying installment receivable is
not paid by the customer.  This recourse obligation is in the form of a deferred payment by the financial institution that is withheld until
customer payments are received.  Otherwise, recourse generally results from circumstances in which we failed to perform requirements related
to contracts with the customer.  Other than the specific items noted above, the financial institutions bear the credit risk associated with the
customer whose receivable it purchased.
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Securitization of Accounts Receivable

The Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2007 securitization transactions include collateralized receivables whose value exceeds the related borrowings from
the financial institutions.  We retain the right to collections on these securitized receivables after all borrowing and related costs are paid to the
financial institution.  The financial institutions� rights to repayment are limited to the payments received from the collateralized receivables.  The
carrying value of the collateralized receivables at September 30, 2007 under these arrangements was $55.8 million and the secured borrowings
totaled $18.8 million.  The collateralized receivables earn interest income and the secured borrowings result in interest expense.  The secured
borrowings incur a higher interest rate than the implicit rates in the receivables.  We act as the servicer under both of these arrangements.

In December 2007, we paid the outstanding amount of the Fiscal 2005 Securitization at its carrying value.  The unamortized debt issue costs
were charged to expense at the time.

We had been in violation of certain covenants related to the Fiscal 2007 Securitization due to the delay in filing our financial statements and
other violations.  The secured borrowings under this arrangement have been classified in the current portion of secured borrowings.  In
March 2008, we paid the outstanding amount of the Fiscal 2007 Securitization at its carrying value plus a termination fee of $0.8 million, and
this securitization is no longer available.   The unamortized debt issue costs were charged to expense at that time.

Fiscal 2007 Securitization

On September 29, 2006, we entered into a three year revolving securitization facility and securitized and transferred installments receivable with
a net carrying value of $32.1 million and received cash proceeds of $20.0 million.  The transfers of installments receivable to the securitization
facility did not qualify as a sale for accounting purposes and has been accounted for as a secured borrowing. These borrowings are secured by
collateralized receivables and the debt and borrowing costs are repaid as the receivables are collected.  We capitalized $1.1 million of debt
issuance costs associated with this
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transaction and these costs are being recognized in interest expense using the effective interest method.  Accumulated amortization of the debt
issue costs was $0.5 million at September 30, 2007.

Credit Facility

In January 2003 and through subsequent amendments, we executed a loan arrangement with Silicon Valley Bank. This arrangement provides a
line of credit of up to the lesser of (1) $15.0 million and (2) 70% of eligible domestic receivables, and a line of credit of up to the lesser of
(1) $10.0 million and (2) 80% of eligible foreign receivables. The lines of credit bear interest at the bank�s prime rate (7.75% at September 30,
2007). We are required to maintain a $4.0 million compensating cash balance with the bank, or be subject to an unused line of credit fee and
collateral handling fees. The lines of credit are collateralized by nearly all of our assets, and upon achieving certain net income targets, the
collateral will be reduced to a lien on our accounts and installments receivable that are not already pledged as collateral against the secured
borrowings. We are required to meet certain financial covenants, including minimum tangible net worth, minimum cash balances and an
adjusted quick ratio. The terms of the loan arrangement restrict our ability to pay dividends, with the exception of dividends paid in common
stock or preferred stock dividends in cash.

As of September 30, 2007, there were $7.5 million in letters of credit outstanding under the line of credit and there was $11.9 million available
for future borrowing. As of September 30, 2007, we were in compliance with the tangible net worth covenant and adjusted quick ratio
covenants. The loan arrangement expires in May 2008.

Requirements

Capital Expenditures

During the three months ended September 30, 2007, investing activities used $3.1 million of cash primarily as a result of the purchase of
$3.1 million of property and leasehold improvements. We expect to spend an additional $6.6 million in capital expenditures in the last nine
months of fiscal 2008, primarily for additional purchases of software and computer equipment. We are not currently party to any purchase
contracts related to future capital expenditures.

Management is currently implementing computer system and other related changes, which are being designed and implemented in part to
remediate our material weaknesses and significant deficiencies. Management currently believes that the costs for such remediation activities, a
substantial portion of which are expected to be incurred to upgrade our existing financial applications, could be material.

Contractual Obligations and Requirements
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Our contractual obligations at September 30, 2007 primarily consisted of operating leases for our headquarters and other facilities,
sub-contractor purchase commitments, and other debt obligations. Other than these, there were no other material commitments for capital or
other expenditures. Our obligations related to these items at September 30, 2007 were as follows (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total
Operating leases $ 9,902 $ 11,084 $ 9,426 $ 8,383 $ 7,147 $ 10,625 $ 56,567
Purchase commitment 375 � � � � � 375
Debt obligations 133 � � � � � 133
Total commitments $ 10,410 $ 11,084 $ 9,426 $ 8,383 $ 7,147 $ 10,625 $ 57,075

Total contractual future sublease rental income as of September 30, 2007 was $12.2 million, which is not included in the above table.  The above
table excludes liabilities relating to uncertain tax positions due to uncertainty as to the timing and amount of obligations.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a significant impact on our operating results to date and we do not expect inflation to have a significant impact during the
three months ended December 31, 2007.
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements.� SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 emphasizes that fair value measurement is market-based, not entity-specific, and
establishes a fair value hierarchy in which the highest priority is quoted prices in active markets. Under SFAS
No. 157, fair value measurements are disclosed according to their level within this hierarchy. SFAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 except for nonrecurring fair value measurements of
nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, for which the effective date is fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. We have not yet determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 157 will have on our
consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, �The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.� SFAS No. 159 permits
entities to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value and provides entities with the opportunity to mitigate
volatility in reported earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. Once an entity has elected the fair value option for designated financial instruments and other items, changes in fair value must be
recognized in the statement of operations.  SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not yet
determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 159 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), �Business Combinations,� which replaces SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141R establishes
principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities
assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. The Statement also establishes disclosure requirements which
will enable users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008. We expect SFAS No. 141R will have an impact on accounting for business combinations once adopted but the effect
is dependent upon future acquisitions.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, �Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements � an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,� which establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by
parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a
parent�s ownership interest and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. The Statement
also establishes reporting requirements that provide sufficient disclosures that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent
and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We have not yet
determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133.�  This statement changes the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS No. 161
requires enhanced disclosures about (a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, (b) how derivative instruments and related hedged
items are accounted for under SFAS No. 133 and its related interpretations, and (c) how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect
an entity�s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008.  We have not yet determined the effect that the application of SFAS No. 161 will have
on our consolidated financial statements.
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Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Investment Portfolio

We do not use derivative financial instruments in our investment portfolio. We place our investments in instruments that meet high credit quality
standards, as specified in our investment policy guidelines. We do not expect any material loss with respect to our investment portfolio from
changes in market interest rates or credit losses. At September 30, 2007, all of the instruments in our investment portfolio were included in cash
and cash equivalents.
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Impact of Foreign Currency Rate Changes

During the first three months of fiscal 2008, the U.S. dollar weakened against currencies for countries in which we have local operations,
primarily in Europe, Canada and the Asia-Pacific region. The remeasurement of our intercompany receivables and payables are recorded as
unrealized transactions gains or losses in our consolidated statement of operations as foreign currency exchange gain (loss) unless such
intercompany foreign currency balances qualify for accounting as a translation adjustment within stockholders� equity.  Our primary foreign
currency exposures relate to customer installment receivables, which are foreign denominated.  Foreign exchange forward contracts are
purchased to hedge certain customer accounts and installments receivable contract amounts (both held and transferred) that are denominated in a
foreign currency.

Foreign Exchange Hedging

We enter into foreign exchange forward contracts to mitigate our exposure to currency fluctuations on customer installments receivable contracts
denominated in foreign currencies. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes, however, our derivative
positions are not accounted for as accounting hedges. We had $34.9 million of foreign exchange forward contracts denominated in British,
Japanese, Swiss, Euro and Canadian currencies, which related to underlying customer installments receivable transactions at September 30,
2007. The underlying customer installments receivable transactions consisted of assets carried on our balance sheet, for which we retain the
exposure associated with changes in foreign exchange rates. At each balance sheet date, the foreign exchange forward contracts and the related
installment receivable contracts denominated in foreign currencies are revalued based on the current market exchange rates. Resulting gains and
losses are included in earnings. Gains and losses related to these instruments for the three months ended September 30, 2007 were not material
to our financial position. We do not anticipate any material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, operating results or cash flows
resulting from the use of these instruments. There can be no assurance, however, that these strategies will be effective or that transaction losses
can be limited or forecasted accurately.

The following table summarizes our forward contracts to sell foreign currencies for U.S. dollars at September 30, 2007. All of these contracts
represented customer accounts and installments receivable contracts. The table presents the value of the contracts in U.S. dollars at the contract
exchange rate as of the contract maturity date. The average contract rate approximated the weighted average contractual foreign currency
exchange rate.  The fair value of the contracts as of September 30, 2007 was a loss of $1.7 million.

Forward
Amount in

Currency U.S. Dollars Contract Origination Date Contract Maturity Date
(in thousands)

Euro $ 26,306 Various: Jan. 07�Sept. 07 Various: Oct. 07�Sept. 08
British Pound Sterling 4,077 Various: Sept. 06�Sept. 07 Various: Oct. 07�June 08
Japanese Yen 2,819 Various: Jan. 07�Sept. 07 Various: Oct. 07�May 08
Canadian Dollar 1,465 Various: Sept. 06�Sept. 07 Various: Oct. 07� June 08
Swiss Franc 278 Various: Aug. 07�Sept. 07 Various: Dec. 07�Feb. 08
Total $ 34,945

Installment receivable contracts
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The installment receivable contracts are financial instruments subject to market risk from changes in interest rates.  We do not expect that
fluctuations in interest rates would significantly impact results of operations in a particular period.

Item 4.  Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. The term �disclosure controls and procedures,� as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act, means controls and other procedures of a company that are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and
procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the
reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the company�s management, including its
principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving
their objectives and management necessarily applies its judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.
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We previously reported five material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, which were described in
Item 9A, Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2007.

The five material weaknesses as of June 30, 2007 were as follows:

•  Inadequate and ineffective controls over the periodic financial close process

•  Inadequate and ineffective controls over the accounting for transfers of customer installment and accounts
receivables under receivable sale facilities

•  Inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and disclosure

•  Inadequate and ineffective controls over the recognition of revenue

•  Inadequate and ineffective controls over the accounts receivable function

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.   In
making this assessment, our management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
in Internal Control-Integrated Framework.  Our management believes that these material weaknesses still exist as of September 30, 2007.
Because of the material weaknesses described above, our chief executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that, as of
September 30, 2007, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended September 30, 2007, no additional changes were made to our internal control over financial reporting that materially
affected, or were reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

72



Remediation Plans

Management has identified the following measures to strengthen our internal control over financial reporting and to address the material
weaknesses described above.  We began implementing certain of these measures prior to the filing of this Form 10-Q/A but changes made to our
internal controls have not yet been in place for a sufficient time to have had a significant effect.  We expect to continue to develop our
remediation plans and implement additional measures during our fiscal year 2008 and into fiscal 2009.

In order to improve controls over the periodic financial close process, we intend to:

•  Complete the upgrade of our existing financial applications, which is designed to streamline the capturing of
relevant data, improve the general ledger and entity account level reporting structures and enhance the information
query and reporting capability for the consolidated books worldwide;

•  Complete the consolidation of financial operations into three global centers;

•  Continue to assess training requirements and adequacy and expertise of the finance and accounting staff on a
global basis;

•  Further improve the periodic financial close process through the use of a detailed financial close plan and
enhanced review of manual journal entries, account reconciliations, estimates and judgments and consolidation
schedules;

•  Assess the adequacy of the systems and procedures used to track and account for stock-based awards;

•  Further simplify the legal entity structure; and
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•  Further enhance procedures to help ensure that the proper accounting for all complex non-routine
transactions is researched, detailed in memoranda and reviewed by senior management prior to recording.

In order to improve controls over the accounting for transfers of customer installment and accounts receivables under receivable sale facilities,
we intend to:

•  Enhance procedures, including increased management review and approval of receivable transfers under
receivable sale facilities and development of appropriate systems and reporting mechanisms, to ensure that
transactions are allowable and properly accounted for as a sale of assets or secured borrowing under the terms of the
receivable sale facilities;

•  Enhance receivable reconciliation procedures to ensure that only valid receivables are included on internal
reports used to identify receivables eligible for transfer; and

•  Improve reporting and review procedures between the company and the financial institutions who participate
in the receivable sales facilities.

In order to improve controls over income tax accounting and disclosure, we intend to:

•  Enhance our policies and procedures for determining and documenting income tax liabilities and
contingencies;

•  Enhance our policies and procedures for determining, documenting and calculating our tax provisions in
accordance with the applicable tax code and the determination of deferred income tax assets and liabilities including
stock based compensation, tax credits, net operating loss carryforwards and limitations thereto as defined under
section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

•  Increase the number of personnel or use of outside advisors with specialized corporate and international tax
expertise.
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In order to improve controls over the recognition of revenue, we intend to:

•  Increase the frequency, scope and tracking of training on revenue recognition for our sales and services
organizations, executive management, regional finance, accounting and operations personnel;

•  Hire additional personnel in regional finance and revenue accounting with expertise in software revenue
recognition;

•  Enhance review procedures for contracts containing both license and service elements;

•  Enhance the process used to determine the estimated discount rate for the present value of license contracts
with extended payment terms;

•  Enhance contract review documentation and procedures to identify and accurately account for non-routine
arrangements with customers;

•  Revise the credit approval policy to include guidelines for the establishment and approval of customer credit
limits and further define procedures for the ongoing monitoring of customer receivable balances;

•  Improve procedures to identify and monitor customers who are approved on a pre-payment basis and ensure
the underlying revenue transactions are accurately accounted for; and

•  Formalize and document a quarterly review of estimated total costs for fixed price professional services
projects and analyze significant variances to actual costs.

In order to improve controls over the accounts receivable function we intend to:

•  Enhance procedures for the review and approval of customer credit memos and adjustments including a
monthly reconciliation of authorized amounts to actual credits and adjustments recorded;
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•  Increase the level and frequency of review of professional services projects with unbilled and unearned
balances to ensure that amounts recorded as unbilled services or deferred revenue are valid and accurate and
provisions for uncollectible amounts are sufficient;

•  Increase the level and frequency of review of past due accounts and related installments in the accounts
receivable aging on a global basis;

•  Assess training requirements and adequacy and expertise of the collections and accounts receivable staff on a
global basis; and

•  Assess the adequacy of the accounting applications deployed to service accounts receivable which have been
sold.

If the remedial measures described above are insufficient to address any of the identified material weaknesses, or additional deficiencies that
may arise in the future, material misstatements in our interim or annual financial statements may occur in the future. We are currently
implementing an enhanced controls environment intended to address the material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting and
to remedy the ineffectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures. While this implementation phase is underway, we are relying on
extensive manual procedures, including regular reviews, to assist us with meeting the objectives otherwise fulfilled by an effective internal
control environment. Among other things, any unremediated material weaknesses could result in material post-closing adjustments in future
financial statements. Furthermore, any such unremediated material weaknesses could have the effects described in �Item 1A. Risk Factors�In
preparing our consolidated financial statements, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, and our
failure to remedy effectively the five material weaknesses identified as of September 30, 2007 could result in material misstatements in our
financial statements� in Part II of this Form 10-Q/A.

The certifications of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer required in accordance with Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act are attached as exhibits to this Form 10-Q/A. The disclosures set forth in this Item 4 contain information concerning the
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, and changes in internal control over financial reporting, referred to in paragraph 4 of the
certifications. This Item 4 should be read in conjunction with the officer certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.  Legal Proceedings

(a) FTC settlement and Related Honeywell Litigation

In December 2004, the Company entered into a consent decree with the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, with respect to a civil
administrative complaint filed by the FTC in August 2003 alleging that the Company�s acquisition of Hyprotech in May 2002 was
anticompetitive in violation of Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act. In connection with the consent
decree, the Company entered into an agreement with Honeywell International, Inc. on October 6, 2004 (�Honeywell Agreement�), pursuant to
which the Company transferred its operator training business and its rights to the intellectual property of various legacy Hyprotech products. In
addition, the Company transferred its AXSYS product line to Bentley Systems, Inc.

On December 23, 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries completed the transactions with Honeywell contemplated by the Honeywell
Agreement.  Under the terms of the transactions:

•  the Company agreed to a cash payment of approximately $6.0 million from Honeywell in consideration of
the transfer of the Company�s operator training services business, the Company�s covenant not-to-compete in the
operator training business until the third anniversary of the closing date, and the transfer of ownership of the
intellectual property of the Company�s Hyprotech engineering products, $1.2 million of which is subject to holdback
and may be released upon the resolution of any adjustments for uncollected billed accounts receivable and unbilled
accounts receivable.

•  the Company transferred and Honeywell assumed, as of the closing date, approximately $4 million in
accounts receivable relating to the operator training business; and

•  the Company entered into a two-year support agreement with Honeywell under which the Company agreed
to provide Honeywell with source code to new releases of the Hyprotech products provided to customers under
standard software maintenance services agreements.

The Honeywell transaction resulted in a deferred gain of $0.2 million, which was amortized over the two-year life of the support agreement, and
is subject to a potential increase of $1.2 million upon resolution of the holdback payment.
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The Company is subject to ongoing compliance obligations under the FTC consent decree. The Company has been responding to requests by the
Staff of the FTC for information relating to the Staff�s investigation of whether the Company has complied with the consent decree.  In addition,
the FTC is considering whether to commence litigation against the Company arising from the Company�s alleged failure to comply with certain
aspects of the decree. If the FTC or a court were to determine that the Company has not complied with its obligations under the consent decree,
the Company could be subject to one or more of a variety of penalties, fines, injunctive relief and other remedies, and associated legal fees and
expenses, any of which might materially limit the Company�s ability to operate under its current business plan and might have a material adverse
effect on the Company�s operating results and financial condition.

In March 2007, the Company was served with a complaint and petition to compel arbitration filed by Honeywell in New York State Supreme
Court. The complaint alleges that the Company failed to comply with its obligations to deliver certain technology under the Honeywell
Agreement referred to above, that the Company owes approximately $800,000 to Honeywell under the Honeywell Agreement, and that
Honeywell is entitled to some portion of the $1.2 million retained by Honeywell under the holdback provisions of the Honeywell Agreement,
plus unspecified monetary damages arising from contracts assumed thereunder. The Company believes the claims to be without merit and intend
to defend the claims vigorously, and to pursue payment of the $1.2 million retained under the holdback provisions of the Honeywell Agreement.
However, it is possible that the resolution of the claims may have an adverse impact on the Company�s financial position and results of
operations.

(b) Other Litigation

SEC action and U.S. Attorney�s office criminal complaint

In January 2007, the SEC filed a civil enforcement action in Massachusetts federal district court alleging securities fraud and other violations
against three of the Company�s former executive officers, David McQuillin, Lisa Zappala and Lawrence Evans, arising out of six transactions in
1999 through 2002 that were reflected in the Company�s originally filed
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consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2000 through 2004, the accounting for which was restated in March 2005. The Company and each of
these former executive officers received �Wells Notice� letters of possible enforcement proceedings by the SEC. On the same day the SEC
complaint was filed, the U.S. Attorney�s Office for the Southern District of New York filed a criminal complaint against David McQuillin
alleging criminal securities fraud violations arising out of two of those transactions. Mr. McQuillin pled guilty in March 2007 and was sentenced
in October 2007.

On July 31, 2007, the Company entered into a settlement order with the SEC resolving the Wells Notice the Company received. Under the
settlement order, the Company agreed to cease and desist from violations of certain provisions of the federal securities laws, and to comply with
certain undertakings.  No civil penalty was assessed by the SEC in connection with that settlement order, and the Company has not admitted or
denied any wrongdoing in connection with that settlement order.

The SEC enforcement action and the U.S. Attorney�s Office criminal action do not involve the Company or any of its current officers or
directors. The Company can provide no assurance, however, that the U.S. Attorney�s Office, the SEC or another regulatory agency will not bring
an enforcement proceeding against the Company, its officers and employees or additional former officers and employees based on the
consolidated financial statements that were restated in March 2005.  The Company continues to cooperate with the SEC and the U.S. Attorney�s
Office.

Class action and opt-out claims

In March 2006, the Company settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of the restated consolidated financial
statements that include the periods referenced in the SEC enforcement action and the criminal complaint discussed above. Members of the class
who opted out of the settlement (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock, or less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the
class action period) may bring or have brought their own state or federal law claims against the Company, referred to as opt-out claims.

Pursuant to the terms of the Class Action settlement, the Company paid $1.9 million and its insurance carrier paid $3.7 million into a settlement
fund for a total of $5.6 million. The Company�s $1.9 million payment was recorded in general and administrative expenses in the quarter ended
September 30, 2005. All costs of preparing and distributing notices to members of the Class and administration of the settlement, together with
all fees and expenses awarded to plaintiffs� counsel and certain other expenses, will be paid out of the settlement fund, which will be maintained
by an escrow agent under the Court�s supervision.

Separate actions have been filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million shares who either opted out of the class action settlement
or were not covered by that settlement.  The claims in those actions include claims against the Company and one or more of its former officers
alleging securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, statutory treble damages, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability,
based on the restated results of one or more fiscal periods included in its restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action.
Those actions are:
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•  Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on June 5, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of
the Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1 in that court, which
is an �opt out� claim asserted by persons who received 248,411 shares of the Company�s common stock in an
acquisition;

•  Feldman v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on July 17, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-3021-BLS2 in that court, which is
an �opt out� claim asserted by an individual who received 323,324 shares of the Company�s common stock in an
acquisition; and

•  380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district
court in Manhattan and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, which is a claim asserted by persons
who purchased 566,665 shares of the Company�s common stock in a private placement.

The damages sought in these actions total more than $20 million, not including claims for treble damages and attorneys� fees.  If these actions are
not dismissed or settled on terms acceptable to the Company, the Company plans to defend the actions vigorously.  The
Company can provide no assurance as to the outcome of these opt-out claims or the likelihood of the filing of
additional opt-out claims, and these claims may result in judgments against the Company for significant damages. 
Regardless of the outcome, such litigation has resulted in the past, and may continue to result in the future, in
significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could
result in losses and damages that have a material adverse effect on the Company�s business.
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On September 6, 2006, the Company also announced that, in connection with the preparation of financial statements for the fiscal year-ended
June 30, 2006, a subcommittee of independent directors was appointed to review the Company�s accounting treatment for stock option grants for
prior years. Following that announcement, the Company and certain of its officers and directors were named defendants in a purported federal
securities class action lawsuits filed in Massachusetts federal district court, alleging violations of the Exchange Act and claiming material
misstatements concerning its financial condition and results. In response to the Company�s motion to dismiss the complaint, the parties stipulated
to voluntary dismissal of the plaintiff�s claims with prejudice on September 26, 2006 without any payment by the Company.

Derivative suits

The Company may be named as a defendant in securities litigation or derivative lawsuits by current or former stockholders based on the restated
consolidated financial statements.  Further, the Company may be subject to claims relating to adverse tax consequences with respect to stock
options covered by the restatement. Defending against potential claims will likely require significant attention and resources of management and
could result in significant legal expenses.

On December 1, 2004, a derivative action lawsuit captioned Caviness v. Evans, et al., Civil Action No. 04-12524, referred to as the Derivative
Action, was filed in Massachusetts federal district court as a related action to the first filed of the putative class actions subsequently
consolidated into the class action described above. The complaint, as subsequently amended, alleged, among other things, that the former and
current director and officer defendants caused the Company to issue false and misleading financial statements, and brought derivative claims for
the following: breach of fiduciary duty for insider trading, breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate
assets and unjust enrichment. On August 18, 2005, the court granted the defendants� motion to dismiss the Derivative Action for failure of the
plaintiff to make a pre-suit demand on the board of directors to take the actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint, and the
Derivative Action was dismissed with prejudice.

On April 12, 2005, the Company received a letter on behalf of another purported stockholder, demanding that the board take actions
substantially similar to those referenced in the Derivative Action. On February 28, 2006, the Company received a letter on behalf of the plaintiff
in the Derivative Action, demanding that they take actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint. The board responded to both of the
foregoing letters that the board has taken the letters under advisement pending further regulatory investigation developments, which the board
continues to monitor and with which the Company continues to cooperate. In its responses, the board also requested confirmation of each
person�s status as one of the Company�s stockholders and, with respect to the most recent letter, also referred the purported stockholder to the
March 2006 settlement in the class action.

On September 27, 2006, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts Superior Court captioned Rapine v. McArdle, et al., Civil Action
No. 06-3455. The complaint alleged, among other things, that the former and current director and officer defendants �authorized, modified, or
failed to halt backdating of stock options in dereliction of their fiduciary duties to the Company as directors and officers.� On October 16, 2006,
defendants removed the action to Massachusetts federal district court and moved to dismiss the complaint. On October 30, 2006, the purported 
stockholder plaintiff filed an amended complaint, asserting derivative claims for breach of fiduciary duty; unjust enrichment; insider trading;
violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and corporate waste. In October 2007, the court closed this
action and consolidated the action with the Risberg case referenced below, which was subsequently dismissed.
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In February 2007, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts federal district court captioned Risberg v. McArdle et al., 07-CV-10354.
The plaintiff purports to bring a derivative action on our behalf alleging, among other things, that several former and current directors and officer
defendants authorized, were aware of, or received �backdated� stock options. The complaint asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duty; unjust
enrichment; violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; corporate waste; and breach of contract. In
January 2008, the court granted defendants� motion to dismiss this action for failure of the plaintiff to make a pre-suit demand on the Company�s
board of directors, and judgment on the order of dismissal was entered in favor of all defendants.
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Other

The Company is currently defending claims that certain of its software products and implementation services have failed to meet customer
expectations. On May 11, 2007, one of the claims resulted in an arbitration award against the Company in the amount of $1.4 million.  As of
June 30, 2007, the Company has accrued the amount of the arbitration award. The Company is defending other claims in excess of $5 million,
primarily consisting of a customer claim, as well as other general commercial claims. Although the Company believes the remaining claims to
be without merit, and is defending the claims vigorously, the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, and unfavorable
resolutions are possible and could, depending on the amount and timing of any outcome, materially affect the Company�s results of operations,
cash flows or financial position. In addition, regardless of the outcome, litigation could have an adverse impact on the Company because of
defense costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Item 1A.  Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described below before
purchasing our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and
uncertainties may also impair our business operations. If any of the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows would likely suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could fall, and you may lose all or part of the
money you paid to buy our common stock.

Risks Related to Our Business

Fluctuations in our quarterly revenues, operating results and cash flow may cause the market price of our common stock to fall.

Our revenues, operating results and cash flow have fluctuated in the past and may fluctuate significantly in the future as a result of a variety of
factors, many of which are outside of our control, including:

•      demand for our products and services;

•      our customers� purchasing patterns;

•      the length of our sales cycle;
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•      the size of customer orders;

•      changes in the mix of our license revenues and service revenues;

•      the timing of introductions of new solutions and enhancements by us and our competitors;

•      seasonal weakness in the first quarter of each fiscal year (which for us is the three months ending September 30),
primarily caused by a seasonal slowdown in business in some of our international markets;

•      the timing of our investments in new product development;

•      the mix of domestic and international sales;

•      our continued ability to sell long-term installments receivable;

•      changes in our operating expenses;

•      implementations of new quotations and order entry applications and procedures for the automations of our
contracting process; and

•      fluctuating economic conditions, particularly as they affect companies in the oil and gas, chemicals,
petrochemicals and petroleum industries.

We ship software products within a short period after receipt of an order and typically do not have a material backlog of unfilled orders for
software products. Consequently, revenues from software licenses in any quarter are substantially dependent on orders booked and shipped in
that quarter. Historically, a majority of each quarter�s revenues from software licenses has come from license agreements that have been entered
into in the final weeks of the quarter. Therefore,

45

Edgar Filing: ASPEN TECHNOLOGY INC /DE/ - Form 10-Q/A

85



Table of Contents

even a short delay in the consummation of an agreement may cause our revenues to fall below expectations of public market analysts and
investors for that quarter.

Since a substantial majority of our expenses are fixed in advance of a particular quarter, we are not able to adjust our spending quickly enough to
compensate for any revenue shortfall in any given quarter and any such shortfall would likely have a disproportionately adverse effect on our
operating results for that quarter. We expect that the factors listed above will continue to affect our operating results for the foreseeable future.
Because of the factors listed above, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our operating results are not necessarily meaningful and
should not be relied upon as indications of future performance.

Term license renewal negotiations may be difficult and more time consuming than negotiations for new licenses. Moreover, customers may
choose not to renew term licenses, resulting in reduced revenue to us. In addition, customers may wish to negotiate renewals of term licenses on
terms and conditions that require us to change the way we recognize revenue under our existing revenue recognition practices at the time of such
renewal with such customers. Any such changes could result in a material adverse effect on our results.

If, due to one or more of the foregoing factors or an unanticipated cause, our operating results fail to meet the expectations of public market
analysts and investors in a future quarter, the market price of our common stock would likely decline.

Our lengthy sales cycle makes it difficult to predict quarterly revenue levels and operating results.

Because license and implementation fees for our software products are substantial and the decision to purchase our products typically involves
members of our customers� senior management, the sales process for our solutions is lengthy and can exceed one year. Accordingly, the timing of
our license revenues is difficult to predict, and the delay of an order could cause our quarterly revenues to fall substantially below our
expectations and those of public market analysts and investors. Moreover, to the extent that we succeed in licensing our integrated aspenONE
product suite rather than stand-alone software products, our sales cycle may lengthen, which could increase the likelihood of delays and cause
the effect of a delay to become more pronounced. Delays in sales could cause significant shortfalls in our revenues and operating results for any
particular period.

We derive a majority of our total revenues from customers in or serving the oil and gas, chemicals, petrochemicals and petroleum industries,
which are highly cyclical, and our operating results may suffer if these industries experience an economic downturn.

We derive a majority of our total revenues from companies in or serving the oil and gas, chemicals, petrochemicals and petroleum industries.
Accordingly, our future success depends upon the continued demand for manufacturing optimization software and services by companies in
these process manufacturing industries. The oil and gas, chemicals, petrochemicals and petroleum industries are highly cyclical and highly
reactive to the price of oil, as well as general economic conditions.
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Adverse changes in the economy and global economic and political uncertainty have previously caused delays and reductions in information
technology spending by our customers and a consequent deterioration of the markets for our products and services, particularly our
manufacturing/supply chain product suites. If adverse economic conditions occur, we would likely experience reductions, delays and
postponements of customer purchases that will negatively impact our revenue and operating results.

In addition, in the past worldwide economic downturns and pricing pressures experienced by oil and gas, chemical, petrochemical and petroleum
companies have led to consolidations and reorganizations. These downturns, pricing pressures and reorganizations have caused delays and
reductions in capital and operating expenditures by many of these companies. These delays and reductions have reduced demand for products
and services like ours. A recurrence of these industry patterns, as well as general domestic and foreign economic conditions and other factors
that reduce spending by companies in these industries, could harm our operating results in the future.

Securities and derivative litigation and government investigations based on our restatement of our consolidated financial statements due to
our prior software accounting practices may subject us to substantial damages and expenses, may require significant management time and
may damage our reputation.

In January 2007, the SEC filed a civil enforcement action in Massachusetts federal district court alleging securities
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fraud and other violations against three of our former executive officers, David McQuillin, Lisa Zappala and Lawrence Evans, arising out of six
transactions in 1999 through 2002 that were reflected in our originally filed consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2000 through 2004, the
accounting for which we restated in March 2005. We and each of these former executive officers received �Wells Notice� letters of possible
enforcement proceedings by the SEC. On the same day the SEC complaint was filed, the U.S. Attorney�s Office for the Southern District of New
York filed a criminal complaint against David McQuillin alleging criminal securities fraud violations arising out of two of those transactions.
Mr. McQuillin pled guilty to securities fraud in March 2007 and was sentenced in October 2007.

On July 31, 2007, we entered into a settlement order with the SEC resolving the Wells Notice we received.  Under the settlement order, we
agreed to cease and desist from violations of certain provisions of the federal securities laws, and to comply with certain undertakings.  No civil
penalty was assessed by the SEC in connection with that settlement order, and we have not admitted or denied any wrongdoing in connection
with that settlement order.

We continue to cooperate with the SEC and U.S. Attorney�s Office.  The SEC enforcement action and the U.S. Attorney�s Office criminal action
do not involve our company or any of our current officers or directors. We can provide no assurance, however, that the U.S. Attorney�s Office,
the SEC or another regulatory agency will not bring an enforcement proceeding against us, our officers and employees or additional former
officers and employees based on the consolidated financial statements that were restated in March 2005.

Any such proceeding would divert the resources of management and could result in significant legal expenses and judgments against us for
significant damages. In addition, even if we are successful in defending against such an enforcement action, such a proceeding may cause our
customers, employees and investors to lose confidence in our company, which could result in significant costs to us and adversely affect the
market price of our common stock.

We are required to advance legal fees (subject to undertakings of repayment if required) and may be required to indemnify certain of our current
or former directors and officers (including one or more of the three former executive officers discussed above) in connection with civil, criminal
or regulatory proceedings or actions, and such indemnification commitments may be costly. Our executive and organization liability insurance
policies provide only limited liability protection relating to such actions against us and certain of our officers and directors and may not cover
the costs of director and officer indemnification or other liabilities incurred by us. If these policies do not adequately cover expenses and
liabilities relating to any proceeding or lawsuit, or if we are unable to achieve a favorable settlement thereof, our financial condition could be
materially harmed. Also, increased premiums could materially harm our financial results in future periods. Our inability to obtain coverage due
to prohibitively expensive premiums would make it more difficult to retain and attract officers and directors and expose us to potentially
self-funding any potential future liabilities ordinarily mitigated by such liability insurance.

In March 2006, we settled class action litigation, including related derivative claims, arising out of our restated consolidated financial statements
that include the periods referenced in the SEC enforcement action and the criminal complaint discussed above. Members of the class who opted
out of the settlement (representing 1,457,969 shares of common stock, or less than 1% of the shares putatively purchased during the class action
period) may bring or have brought their own state or federal law claims against us, which we refer to as opt-out claims.

Separate actions have been filed on behalf of the holders of approximately 1.1 million shares who either opted out of the class action settlement
or were not covered by that settlement. The claims in those actions include claims against us and one or more of our former officers alleging
securities and common law fraud, breach of contract, statutory treble damages, deceptive practices and/or rescissory damages liability, based on
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the restated results of one or more fiscal periods included in our restated consolidated financial statements referenced in the class action. Those
actions are:

•  Blecker, et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on June 5, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-2357-BLS1 in that court, which is
an �opt out� claim asserted by persons who received 248,411 shares of our common stock in an acquisition;

•  Feldman v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on July 17, 2006 in the Business Litigation Session of the
Massachusetts Superior Court for Suffolk County and docketed as Civ. A. No. 06-3021-BLS2 in that court, which is
an �opt out� claim asserted by an individual who received 323,324 shares of our common stock in an acquisition; and

•  380544 Canada, Inc., et al. v. Aspen Technology, Inc., et al., filed on February 15, 2007 in the federal district
court in Manhattan and docketed as Civ. A. No. 1:07-cv-01204-JFK in that court, which is a claim asserted by persons
who purchased 566,665 shares of our common stock in a private placement.
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The damages sought in these actions total more than $20 million, not including claims for treble damages and attorneys� fees.   If these actions
are not dismissed or settled on terms acceptable to us, we plan to defend these actions vigorously.  We can provide no assurance as to the
outcome of these opt-out claims or the likelihood of the filing of additional opt-out claims, and these claims may result in judgments against us
for significant damages.  Regardless of the outcome, such litigation has resulted in the past, and may continue to result in the future, in
significant legal expenses and may require significant attention and resources of management, all of which could result in losses and damages
that have a material adverse effect on our business.

On December 1, 2004, a derivative action lawsuit captioned Caviness v. Evans, et al., Civil Action No. 04-12524, referred to as the Derivative
Action, was filed in Massachusetts federal district court as a related action to the first filed of the putative class actions subsequently
consolidated into the class action described above. The complaint, as subsequently amended, alleged, among other things, that the former and
current director and officer defendants caused us to issue false and misleading financial statements, and brought derivative claims for the
following: breach of fiduciary duty for insider trading, breach of fiduciary duty, abuse of control, gross mismanagement, waste of corporate
assets and unjust enrichment. On August 18, 2005, the court granted the defendants� motion to dismiss the Derivative Action for failure of the
plaintiff to make a pre-suit demand on the board of directors to take the actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint, and the
Derivative Action was dismissed with prejudice.

On April 12, 2005, we received a letter on behalf of another purported stockholder, demanding that the board take actions substantially similar to
those referenced in the Derivative Action. On February 28, 2006, we received a letter on behalf of the plaintiff in the Derivative Action,
demanding that we take actions referenced in the Derivative Action complaint. The board responded to both of the foregoing letters that the
board has taken the letters under advisement pending further regulatory investigation developments, which the board continues to monitor and
with which we continue to cooperate. In its responses, the board also requested confirmation of each person�s status as one of our stockholders
and, with respect to the most recent letter, also referred the purported stockholder to the March 2006 settlement in the class action.

A determination that we have failed to comply with our existing consent decree with the Federal Trade Commission could have a material
adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

In December 2004, we entered into a consent decree with the Federal Trade Commission, or FTC, with respect to a civil administrative
complaint filed by the FTC in August 2003 alleging that our acquisition of Hyprotech in May 2002 was anticompetitive in violation of Section 5
of the Federal Trade Commission Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act. In connection with the consent decree, we entered into an agreement
with Honeywell International, Inc., which we refer to as the Honeywell agreement, pursuant to which we transferred our operator training
business and our rights to the intellectual property of various legacy Hyprotech products. In addition, we transferred our AXSYS product line to
Bentley Systems, Inc.

We are subject to ongoing compliance obligations under the FTC consent decree. We have been responding to requests by the Staff of the FTC
for information relating to the Staff�s investigation of whether we have complied with the consent decree. In addition, the FTC is considering
whether to commence litigation against us arising from our alleged failure to comply with certain aspects of the decree. If the FTC or a court
were to determine that we have not complied with our obligations under the consent decree, we could be subject to one or more of a variety of
penalties, fines, injunctive relief and other remedies, and associated legal fees and expenses, any of which might materially limit our ability to
operate under our current business plan and might have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

In March 2007, we were served with a complaint and petition to compel arbitration filed by Honeywell in New York State Supreme Court. The
complaint alleges that we failed to comply with our obligations to deliver certain technology under the Honeywell agreement referred to above,
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that we owe approximately $800,000 to Honeywell under the agreement and that Honeywell is entitled to some portion of the $1.2 million
retained by Honeywell under the holdback provisions of the agreement, plus unspecified monetary damages arising from contracts assumed
under the agreement. We believe the claims to be without merit and intend to defend the claims vigorously, and to pursue payment of the $1.2
million retained under the holdback provisions of the agreement. However, it is possible that the resolution of the claims may have an adverse
impact on our financial position and results of operations.

In preparing our consolidated financial statements, we identified material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting, and
our failure to remedy effectively the five material weaknesses identified as of June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007 could result in material
misstatements in our financial statements.

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial
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reporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act. Our management identified five material weaknesses in our internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007. A material weakness is defined as a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of our annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

The material weaknesses identified by management as of June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007 consisted of:

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the periodic financial close process;

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the accounting for transfers of customer installment and accounts receivables under
receivable sale facilities;

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over income tax accounting and disclosure;

• Inadequate and ineffective controls over the  recognition of revenue; and

• Ineffective and inadequate controls over the accounts receivable function

As a result of these material weaknesses, our management concluded as of June 30, 2007 and September 30, 2007 that our internal control over
financial reporting was not effective based on criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework.

We are implementing remedial measures designed to address these material weaknesses. If these remedial measures are insufficient to address
these material weaknesses, or if additional material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal control are discovered or occur in the
future, we may fail to meet our future reporting obligations on a timely basis, our consolidated financial statements may contain material
misstatements, we could be required to restate our prior period financial results, our operating results may be harmed, we may be subject to class
action litigation and if we regain listing on a public exchange, our common stock could be delisted from that exchange. For example, material
weaknesses that remain unremediated could result in material post-closing adjustments in future financial statements. Any failure to address the
identified material weaknesses or any additional material weaknesses in our internal control could also adversely affect the results of the periodic
management evaluations regarding the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting that are required to be included in our annual
reports on Form 10-K. Internal control deficiencies could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial information. We can
give no assurance that the measures we have taken to date or any future measures will remediate the material weaknesses identified or that any
additional material weaknesses or additional restatements of financial results will not arise in the future due to a failure to implement and
maintain adequate internal control over financial reporting or circumvention of these controls. In addition, even if we are successful in
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strengthening our controls and procedures, those controls and procedures may not be adequate to prevent or identify irregularities or errors or to
facilitate the fair presentation of our consolidated financial statements.

If we do not become current in our SEC filings, or if in the future we are not current in our SEC fillings, we will face several adverse
consequences.

If we are unable to become or remain current in our financial filings, investors in our securities will not have information regarding our business
and financial condition with which to make decisions regarding investment in our securities. In addition, we are and would not be able to have a
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, covering a public offering of securities, declared effective by the SEC, and we will not
be able to make offerings pursuant to existing registration statements or pursuant to certain �private placement� rules of the SEC under
Regulation D to any purchasers not qualifying as �accredited investors.� We also are and would not be eligible to use a �short form� registration
statement on Form S-3 for a period of 12 months after the time we become current in our filings. These restrictions may impair our ability to
raise funds should we desire to do so and may adversely affect our financial condition. Also, if we are unable to become or remain current in our
filings, and it we are not able to obtain waivers under our financing arrangements, it might become necessary to repay certain borrowings.

Our common stock has been delisted from The NASDAQ Stock Market and transferred to the Pink Sheets electronic quotation service,
which may, among other things, reduce the price of our common stock and the levels of liquidity available to our stockholders.

As a result of our inability to timely file the Form 10-K, Nasdaq issued a Staff Determination to us that, in the absence of a request for a hearing,
would have resulted in suspension of trading of our common stock, and filing of a Form 
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25-NSE with the SEC to remove our securities from listing and registration on The NASDAQ Stock Market.  Nasdaq subsequently issued an
Additional Staff Determination citing our inability to timely file our Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007 as an
additional basis for delisting our securities.  An oral hearing was held at our request on November 15, 2007.  At the hearing, we requested an
extension of time to cure our SEC filing deficiency.  The NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Panel, or the Panel, determined on January 7, 2008 to
grant our request for continued listing, subject to certain conditions, including filing the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2007
and this Form 10-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007, by January 18, 2008.  On January 28, 2008, the Panel granted our
request for an extension for continued listing  on The NASDAQ Global Market through February 8, 2008. On February 14, 2008, we received a
letter advising us that the NASDAQ Listing Qualifications Panel had determined to delist our shares from The NASDAQ Stock Market, and
trading of our shares was suspended effective at the open of business on February 19, 2008.  Our common stock has been quoted on the Pink
Sheets LLC electronic quotation service beginning on February 19, 2008.

There is no assurance that we will regain listing of our common stock on a public exchange. If we regain listing and thereafter fail to  keep
current in our SEC filings or to comply with the applicable continued listing requirements,  our common stock might be and subsequently would
trade in the Pink Sheets electronic quotation service, or the Pink Sheets.   The trading of our common stock in the Pink Sheets may reduce the
price of our common stock and the levels of liquidity available to our stockholders. In addition, the trading of our common stock in the Pink
Sheets would materially adversely affect our access to the capital markets, and the limited liquidity and potentially reduced price of our common
stock could materially adversely affect our ability to raise capital through alternative financing sources on terms acceptable to us or at all. Stocks
that trade in the Pink Sheets are no longer eligible for margin loans, and a company trading in the Pink Sheets cannot avail itself of federal
preemption of state securities or �blue sky� laws, which adds substantial compliance costs to securities issuances, including pursuant to employee
option plans, stock purchase plans and private or public offerings of securities. If we regain listing and are delisted in the future and transferred
to the Pink Sheets, there may also be other negative implications, including the potential loss of confidence by suppliers, customers and
employees, the loss of institutional investor interest in our company.

Claims and litigation based on our restatement of our consolidated financial statements due to our prior accounting for stock-based
compensation may require that we incur substantial additional expenses and expend significant additional management time.

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2006, a subcommittee of independent members of the board
of directors determined that certain stock option grants during fiscal 1995 through 2004 were accounted for incorrectly and concluded that
stock-based compensation associated with certain grants was misstated in fiscal 1995 through 2005 and the nine months ended March 31, 2006.
As a result of these errors, some of our employees realized nonqualified deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code and, therefore became subject to an excise tax on the value of the options in the year in which they vest. We may be named as a
defendant in securities litigation or derivative lawsuits by current or former stockholders based on the restated consolidated financial statements.
Further, we may be subject to claims relating to adverse tax consequences with respect to stock options covered by the restatement. Defending
against potential claims will likely require significant attention and resources of management and could result in significant legal expenses.
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On September 27, 2006, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts Superior Court captioned Rapine v. McArdle, et al., Civil Action
No. 06-3455. The complaint alleged, among other things, that the former and current director and officer defendants �authorized, modified, or
failed to halt backdating of stock options in dereliction of their fiduciary duties to the Company as directors and officers.� On October 16, 2006,
defendants removed the action to Massachusetts federal district court and moved to dismiss the complaint. On October 30, 2006, the purported
stockholder plaintiff filed an amended complaint, asserting derivative claims for breach of fiduciary duty; unjust enrichment; insider trading;
violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and corporate waste. In October 2007, the court closed this
action and consolidated the action with the Risberg case referenced below, which was subsequently dismissed.

In February 2007, a derivative action lawsuit was filed in Massachusetts federal district court captioned Risberg v. McArdle et al., 07-CV-10354.
The plaintiff purports to bring a derivative action on our behalf alleging, among other things, that several former and current directors and officer
defendants authorized, were aware of, or received �backdated� stock options. The complaint asserts claims for breach of fiduciary duty; unjust
enrichment; violations of Sections 10(b), 14 and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; corporate waste; and breach of contract. In
January 2008, the court granted defedants� motion to dismiss this action for failure of the plaintiff to make a pre-suit demand on our board of
directors, and judgment on the order of dismissal was entered in favor of all defendants.

Our international operations are complex and if we fail to manage those operations effectively, the growth of our business would be limited
and our operating results would be adversely affected.

As of September 30, 2007, we had 29 offices in 22 countries. We sell our products primarily through a direct sales force located throughout the
world. In the event that we are unable to adequately staff and maintain our foreign operations, we could face difficulties managing our
international operations. We also rely, to a lesser extent, on distributors and resellers to sell our products and market our services internationally,
and our inability to manage and maintain those relationships would limit our ability to generate revenue outside the United States. The
complexities of our operations also require us to make significant expenditures to ensure that our operations are compliant with regulatory
requirements in numerous foreign jurisdictions. To the extent we are unable to manage the various risks associated with our complex
international operations effectively, the growth and profitability of our business may be adversely affected.

Our business may suffer if we fail to address challenges associated with transacting business internationally.

Customers outside the United States accounted for approximately 57% and 53% of our total revenues in fiscal 2006 and 2007, respectively. We
anticipate that revenues from customers outside the United States will continue to account for a significant portion of our total revenues for the
foreseeable future. Our operations outside the United States are subject to additional risks, including:

•  unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, exchange rates, tariffs and other barriers;

•  political and economic instability;
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•  less effective protection of intellectual property;

•  difficulties and delays in translating products and product documentation into foreign languages;

•  difficulties and delays in negotiating software licenses compliant with accounting revenue recognition
requirements in the United States;

•  difficulties in collecting trade accounts receivable in other countries; and

•  adverse tax consequences.

In addition, the impact of future exchange rate fluctuations on our operating results cannot be accurately predicted. In recent years, we have
increased the extent to which we denominate arrangements with international customers in the currencies of the countries in which the software
or services are provided. From time to time we have engaged in, and may
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continue to engage in, economic hedging of a significant portion of installment contracts denominated in foreign currencies. Any hedging
policies implemented by us may not be successful, and the cost of these hedging techniques may have a significant negative impact on our
operating results.

Competition from software offered by current competitors and new market entrants, as well as from internally developed solutions, could
adversely affect our ability to sell our software products and related services and could result in pressure to price our products in a manner
that reduces our margins.

Our markets in general are highly competitive:

•  Our engineering software competes with products of businesses such as ABB, Chemstations, Honeywell,
KBC, Shell Global Solutions, Simulation Sciences (a division of Invensys) and WinSim (formerly ChemShare).

•  Our plant operations software competes with products of companies such as ABB, Honeywell, Invensys,
Rockwell and Siemens and components of SAP�s product offerings.

•  Our supply chain management software competes with products of companies such as Honeywell, i2
Technologies, Manugistics (a subsidiary of JDA Software Group) and Infor and components of SAP�s supply chain
offering.

As we expand our engineering solutions into other markets we may face competition from companies that we have not typically competed
against in the past or competition from companies in areas where we have not competed in the past, such as Dassault Systems, Oracle, SAP and
Siemens. We also face competition in all areas of our business from large companies in the process industries that have internally developed
their own proprietary software solutions.

Many of our current and potential competitors have greater financial, technical, marketing, service and other resources than we have. As a result,
these companies may be able to offer lower prices, additional products or services, or other incentives that we cannot match or offer. These
competitors may be in a stronger position to respond more quickly to new technologies and may be able to undertake more extensive marketing
campaigns. They also may adopt more aggressive pricing policies and make more attractive offers to potential customers, employees and
strategic partners. In addition, many of our competitors have established, and may in the future continue to establish, cooperative relationships
with third parties to improve their product offerings and to increase the availability of their products in the marketplace.  Competitors with
greater financial resources may make strategic acquisitions to increase their ability to gain market share or improve the quality or marketability
of their products.
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Competition could seriously impede our ability to sell additional software products and related services on terms favorable to us. Businesses
may continue to enhance their internally developed solutions, rather than investing in commercial software such as ours. Our current and
potential commercial competitors may develop and market new technologies that render our existing or future products obsolete, unmarketable
or less competitive. In addition, if these competitors develop products with similar or superior functionality to our products, we may need to
decrease the prices for our products in order to remain competitive. If we are unable to maintain our current pricing due to competitive pressures,
our margins will be reduced and our operating results will be negatively affected. We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete
successfully against current or future competitors or that competitive pressures will not materially adversely affect our business, financial
condition and operating results.

If we fail to develop new software products or enhance existing products and services, we will be unable to implement our product strategy
successfully and our business could be seriously harmed.

Enterprises are requiring their application software vendors to provide greater levels of functionality and broader product offerings. Moreover,
competitors continue to make rapid technological advances in computer hardware and software technology and frequently introduce new
products, services and enhancements. We must continue to enhance our current product line and develop and introduce new products and
services that keep pace with increasingly sophisticated customer requirements and the technological developments of our competitors. Our
business and operating results could suffer if we cannot successfully respond to the technological advances of competitors or if our new products
or product enhancements and services do not achieve market acceptance.

Under our business plan, we are investing significantly in the development of new business process products that are intended to anticipate and
meet the emerging needs of our target markets. We are implementing a product strategy that unifies our software solutions under the aspenONE
brand with differentiated aspenONE vertical solutions targeted at specific
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process industry segments. We cannot assure you that our product strategy will result in products that will meet market needs and achieve
significant market acceptance.

Defects or errors in our software products could harm our reputation, impair our ability to sell our products and result in significant costs to
us.

Our software products are complex and may contain undetected defects or errors. We have not suffered significant harm from any defects or
errors to date, but we have from time to time found defects in our products and we may discover additional defects in the future. We may not be
able to detect and correct defects or errors before releasing products. Consequently, we or our customers may discover defects or errors after our
products have been implemented. We have in the past issued, and may in the future need to issue, corrective releases of our products to remedy
defects or errors. The occurrence of any defects or errors could result in:

•  lost or delayed market acceptance and sales of our products;

•  delays in payment to us by customers;

•  product returns;

•  injury to our reputation;

•  diversion of our resources;

•  legal claims, including product liability claims, against us;

•  increased service and warranty expenses or financial concessions; and

•  increased insurance costs.
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Defects and errors in our software products could result in an increase in service and warranty costs or claims for substantial damages against us.

We may be subject to significant expenses and damages because of liability claims related to our products and services.

We may be subject to significant expenses and damages because of liability claims related to our products and services. The sale and
implementation of certain of our software products and services, particularly in the areas of advanced process control, supply chain and
optimization, entail the risk of product liability claims and associated damages. Our software products and services are often integrated with our
customers� networks and software applications and are used in the design, operation and management of manufacturing and supply chain
processes at large facilities, often for mission critical applications. Any errors, defects, performance problems or other failure of our software
could result in significant liability to us for damages or for violations of environmental, safety and other laws and regulations. We are currently
defending claims that certain of our software products and implementation services have failed to meet customer expectations. On May 11,
2007, one of the claims resulted in a $1.4 million arbitration award against us. We are defending other claims in excess of $5 million, primarily
consisting of a customer claim, as well as other general commercial claims. In addition, our software products and implementation services
could continue to give rise to warranty and other claims. We currently are unable to determine whether resolution of any of these matters will
have a material adverse impact on our financial position, cash flows or results of operations, or, in many cases, reasonably estimate the amount
of the loss, if any, that may result from the resolution of these matters.

Our agreements with our customers generally contain provisions designed to limit our exposure to potential product liability claims. It is
possible, however, that the limitation of liability provisions in our agreements may not be effective as a result of federal, foreign, state or local
laws or ordinances or unfavorable judicial decisions. A substantial product liability judgment against us could materially and adversely harm our
operating results and financial condition. Even if our software is not at fault, a product liability claim brought against us could be time
consuming, costly to defend and harmful to our operations. In addition, although we carry general liability insurance, our current insurance
coverage may be insufficient to protect us from all liability that may be imposed under these types of claims.
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Implementation of our products can be difficult and time-consuming, and customers may be unable to implement our products successfully
or otherwise achieve the benefits attributable to our products.

Our products are intended to work with complex business processes. Some of our software, such as scheduling applications and integrated
supply chain products, must integrate with the existing computer systems and software programs of our customers. This can be complex,
time-consuming and expensive. As a result, some customers may have difficulty in implementing or be unable to implement these products
successfully or otherwise achieve the benefits attributable to these products. Delayed or ineffective implementation of the software products or
related services may limit our ability to expand our revenues and may result in customer dissatisfaction, harm to our reputation and may result in
customer unwillingness to pay the fees associated with these products.

We may suffer losses on fixed-price engagements.

We derive a substantial portion of our total revenues from service engagements and a significant percentage of these engagements have been
undertaken on a fixed-price basis. Under these fixed-price engagements, we bear the risk of cost overruns and inflation, and as a result, any of
these engagements may be unprofitable. In the past, we have had cost overruns on fixed-price service engagements. In addition, to the extent that
we are successful in shifting customer purchases to our integrated suites of software and services and we price those engagements on a
fixed-price basis, the size of our fixed-price engagements may increase, which could cause the impact of an unprofitable fixed-price engagement
to have a more pronounced impact on our operating results.

We may not be able to protect our intellectual property rights, which could make us less competitive and cause us to lose market share.

We regard our software as proprietary and rely on a combination of copyright, patent, trademark and trade secret laws, license and
confidentiality agreements, and software security measures to protect our proprietary rights. We have registered or have applied to register
several of our significant trademarks in the United States and in certain other countries. We generally enter into non-disclosure agreements with
our employees and customers, and historically have restricted access to our software products� source codes, which we regard as proprietary
information. In a few cases, we have provided copies of the source code for some of our products to customers solely for the purpose of special
product customization and have deposited copies of the source code for some of our products in third-party escrow accounts as security for
ongoing service and license obligations. In these cases, we rely on non-disclosure and other contractual provisions to protect our proprietary
rights.

The steps we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate to deter misappropriation of our technology or independent
development by others of technologies that are substantially equivalent or superior to our technology. Any misappropriation of our technology or
development of competitive technologies could harm our business and could force us to incur substantial costs in protecting and enforcing our
intellectual property rights. The laws of some countries in which our products are licensed do not protect our products and intellectual property
rights to the same extent as the laws of the United States.
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Third-party claims that we infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others may be costly to defend or settle and could damage our
business.

We cannot be certain that our software and services do not infringe issued patents, copyrights, trademarks or other intellectual property rights of
third parties. Litigation regarding intellectual property rights is common in the software industry, and we may be subject to legal proceedings
and claims from time to time, including claims of alleged infringement of intellectual property rights of third parties by us or our licensees
concerning their use of our software products and integration technologies and services. Although we believe that our intellectual property rights
are sufficient to allow us to market our software without incurring liability to third parties, third parties may bring claims of infringement against
us. Because our software is integrated with our customers� networks and business processes, as well as other software applications, third parties
may bring claims of infringement against us, as well as our customers and other software suppliers, if the cause of the alleged infringement
cannot easily be determined. Such claims may be with or without merit.

Claims of alleged infringement may have a material adverse effect on our business and may discourage potential customers from doing business
with us on acceptable terms, if at all. Defending against claims of infringement may be time-consuming and may result in substantial costs and
diversion of resources, including our management�s attention to our business. Furthermore, a party making an infringement claim could secure a
judgment that requires us to pay substantial damages. A judgment could also include an injunction or other court order that could prevent us
from selling our software or
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require that we re-engineer some or all of our products. Claims of intellectual property infringement also might require us to enter costly royalty
or license agreements. We may be unable, however, to obtain royalty or license agreements on terms acceptable to us or at all. Our business,
operating results and financial condition could be harmed significantly if any of these events occurred, and the price of our common stock could
be adversely affected. Furthermore, former employers of our current and future employees may assert that our employees have improperly
disclosed confidential or proprietary information to us. In addition, we have agreed, and may agree in the future, to indemnify certain of our
customers against claims that our software infringes upon the intellectual property rights of others. Although we carry general liability insurance,
our current insurance coverage may not apply to, and likely would not protect us from, liability that may be imposed under any of the types of
claims described above.

Because some of our software products incorporate technology licensed from, or provided by, third parties, the loss of our right to use that
third-party technology or defects in that technology could harm our business.

Some of our software products contain technology that is licensed from, or provided by, third parties. Any significant interruption in the supply
or support of any such third-party software could adversely affect our sales, unless and until we can replace the functionality provided by the
third-party software. Because some of our software incorporates software developed and maintained by third parties, we depend on these third
parties to deliver and support reliable products, enhance our current software, develop new software on a timely and cost-effective basis and
respond to emerging industry standards and other technological changes. In other instances, we provide third-party software with our current
software, and we depend on these third parties to deliver reliable products, provide underlying product support and respond to emerging industry
standards and other technological changes. The failure of these third parties to meet these criteria could harm our business.

New accounting standards or interpretations of existing accounting standards could adversely affect our operating results.

Generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, in the United States are subject to interpretation by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the SEC and various bodies formed to promulgate and interpret appropriate
accounting principles. A change in these principles or interpretations could have a significant effect on our reported financial results and could
affect the reporting of transactions completed before the announcement of a change.

For example, we recognize software license revenue in accordance with SOP No. 97-2, as amended by SOP No. 98-4 and SOP No. 98-9, and in
accordance with SOP No. 81-1. The accounting profession may continue to discuss certain provisions of relevant accounting literature with the
objective of providing additional guidance on potential interpretations related to software revenue recognition and �multiple element
arrangements� in which a single contract includes a software license, a maintenance services agreement and/or other �elements� that are bundled
together in a total offering to the customer. These discussions and the issuance of interpretations, once finalized, could lead to unanticipated
changes in our current revenue accounting practices, which could change the timing of revenue recognition.

If we are not successful in attracting, integrating and retaining highly qualified personnel, we may not be able to successfully implement our
business strategy.
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Our ability to establish and maintain a position of technology leadership in the highly competitive software market depends in large part upon
our ability to attract, integrate and retain highly qualified managerial, sales, technical and accounting personnel. Competition for qualified
personnel in the software industry is intense. We have from time to time in the past experienced, and we expect to continue to experience in the
future, difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. Moreover, we have recently hired a significant
number and percentage of the personnel in key areas of our operations, such as accounting and finance. Our management will need to devote
significant attention and resources to strengthen relationships among these personnel, and our ability to grow our business will be impaired if
these personnel are not able to work together effectively. Our future success will depend in large part on our ability to attract, integrate and retain
a sufficient number of highly qualified personnel, and there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so.

If we are unable to develop or maintain strategic alliance relationships, our revenue growth, operating results, financial condition or cash
flows may be materially and adversely affected.

An element of our growth strategy is to establish strategic alliances with selected third-party resellers, agents and systems integrators, which we
refer to collectively as resellers, that market, sell and integrate our products and services. It is possible that our existing relationships with
resellers might be terminated by us or the resellers, or that we will not adequately
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train, and enter into agreements with, a sufficient number of qualified resellers, or that potential resellers may focus their efforts on marketing
competing products to the process industries.

In addition, the cessation or termination of certain relationships, by us or a reseller, may subject us to material liability and/or expense. This
material liability and/or expense includes potential payments due upon the termination or cessation of the relationship by us or a reseller, costs
related to the establishment of a direct sales presence or development of a new agent in the territory. No such events of termination or cessation
have occurred. We are not able to reasonably estimate the amount of any such liability and/or expense if such an event were to occur, given the
range of factors that could affect the ultimate determination of our liability. Actual payments could be in the range of zero to $30 million. If any
of the foregoing were to occur, our future revenue growth could be limited or we may be subject to litigation and liability claims such that our
operating results, cash flows and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

In addition, if our resellers fail to implement our solutions for our customers properly, our reputation could be harmed and we could be subject to
claims by our customers. We intend to continue to establish business relationships with resellers to accelerate the development and marketing of
our products and services. To the extent that we are unsuccessful in maintaining our existing relationships and developing new relationships, our
operating results and financial condition could be materially and adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our common stock may experience substantial price and volume fluctuations.

The equity markets have from time to time experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations, particularly in the high technology sector, and
those fluctuations have often been unrelated to the operating performance of particular companies. In addition, factors such as our financial
performance, announcements of technological innovations or new products by us or our competitors, as well as market conditions in the
computer software or hardware industries, may have a significant impact on the market price of our common stock.

In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a public company�s securities, securities class action litigation has often been
instituted against companies. This type of litigation could result in substantial liability and costs and divert management�s attention and resources.

Our ability to raise capital in the future may be limited, and our failure to raise capital when needed could prevent us from executing our
business plan.

We expect that our current cash balances, future cash flows from our operations, and continued ability to sell installment receivable contracts
will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash needs for at least the next twelve months. We may need to obtain additional financing thereafter or
earlier, however, if our current plans and projections prove to be inaccurate or our expected cash flows prove to be insufficient to fund our
operations because of lower-than-expected revenues, fewer sales of installment contracts, unanticipated expenses or other unforeseen
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difficulties.

Our ability to obtain additional financing will depend on a number of factors, including market conditions, our operating performance, the
quality of our installment contracts, the reaction of the capital and credit markets to our financial restatement with the inclusion of secured
borrowings, and investor interest. These factors may make the timing, amount, terms and conditions of any financing unattractive. If adequate
funds are not available, or are not available on acceptable terms, we may have to forego strategic acquisitions or investments, reduce or defer our
development activities or delay our introduction of new products and services.

Any additional capital raised through the sale of equity or convertible debt securities may dilute the existing shareholder percentage ownership
of our common stock. Furthermore, any new securities we issue could have rights, preferences and privileges superior to our common stock.
Capital raised through debt financings could require us to make periodic interest payments and could impose potentially restrictive covenants on
the conduct of our business.

Our corporate documents and provisions of Delaware law may prevent a change in control or management that stockholders may consider
desirable.

Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our charter and our by-laws contain provisions that might enable our management to
resist a takeover of our company.
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These provisions include:

•  limitations on the removal of directors;

•  a classified board of directors so that not all members of our board are elected at one time;

•  advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and nominations;

•  the inability of stockholders to act by written consent or to call special meetings;

•  the ability of our board of directors to make, alter or repeal our by-laws; and

•  the ability of our board of directors to designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred stock without
stockholder approval.

These provisions could:

•  have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company or a change in our
management that stockholders may consider favorable or beneficial;

•  discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for stockholders to elect directors and take other
corporate actions; and

•  limit the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.
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We have also adopted a stockholder rights plan that could significantly dilute the equity interests of a person seeking to acquire control of our
company without the approval of the board of directors.

We are obligated to register for public sale shares of common stock issued upon the conversion of our previously outstanding Series D-1
preferred stock, and sales of those shares may result in a decrease in the price of our common stock.

Private equity funds managed by Advent International Corporation have the right to require that we register under the Securities Act the shares
of common stock that were issued upon the conversion of our previously outstanding Series D-1 preferred stock and upon the exercise of certain
previously outstanding warrants.  In May 2006, we received a demand letter from such funds requesting the registration of all of the shares of
common stock covered by those registration rights, for sale in an underwritten public offering. Pursuant to this request, in April 2007 we filed a
registration statement for a public offering of 18,000,000 shares of common stock held by such funds.  The registration statement also covered
2,700,000 shares that would be subject to an option to be granted to the underwriters by such funds solely to cover overallotments.  This
registration statement remains on file with the SEC.  Any sale of common stock into the public market pursuant to the pending registration
statement could cause a decline in the trading price of our common stock.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Item 6.  Exhibits

Filed Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit 
Number Description

with this
Form 10-Q/A Form

Filing Date with
SEC

Exhibit 
Number

10.1 Amendment dated September 5, 2007 to Lease
Agreement dated January 30, 1992 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and MA-Ten Canal Park, L.L.C.

10-K April 11, 2008 10.1c

10.2 Sublease dated September 5, 2007 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and MA-Ten Canal Park
L.L.C. regarding 10 Canal Park, Cambridge,
Massachusetts

10-K April 11, 2008 10.2

10.3 Twelfth Amendment dated October 16, 2007 to
Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement
dated December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley
Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

10-K April 11, 2008 10.15l

10.4 Thirteenth Amendment dated December 12, 2007
to Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement
dated December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley
Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

10-K April 11, 2008 10.15m

10.5 Fourteenth Amendment dated December 28, 2007
to Non-Recourse Receivables Purchase Agreement
dated December 31, 2003 between Silicon Valley
Bank and Aspen Technology, Inc.

8-K January 7, 2008 10.2

10.6 Release Letter dated December 28, 2007 relating to
Loan Agreement dated June 15, 2005 among
Aspen Technology, Inc., Aspen Technology
Receivables II LLC, Guggenheim Corporate
Funding, LLC and the Lenders named therein

8-K January 7, 2008 10.1

10.7 Fifteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated
August 30, 2007 to Loan and Security Agreement
dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank
and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

10-K April 11, 2008 10.22p

10.8 Sixteenth Loan Modification Agreement dated
October 16, 2007 to Loan and Security Agreement
dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank
and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

10-K April 11, 2008 10.22q

10.9 Seventeenth Loan Modification Agreement dated
December 2007 to Loan and Security Agreement
dated January 30, 2003 among Silicon Valley Bank
and Aspen Technology, Inc., AspenTech, Inc. and
Hyprotech Company

8-K January 7, 2008 10.3
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effective October 3, 2007 between Aspen
Technology, Inc. and Mark E. Fusco

10-K April 11, 2008 10.50
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31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

X

32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

X

^ Management contract or compensatory plan
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SIGNATURES

                Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

ASPEN TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Date: February 19, 2009 By: /s/ Mark E. Fusco
Mark E. Fusco
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 19, 2009 By: /s/ Bradley T. Miller
Bradley T. Miller
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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